Transcription of Chris Mumma Interview with Herman Baker

Date: March 19,2013
Location: Fayetteville, North Carolina
Key:

CM (Chris Mumma, NC Center on Actual Innocence)

CAS (Cheryl Sullivan, NC Center on Actual Innocence)

HB (Herman Baker, witness in Joseph Sledge trial)

JM (James McLean, a man that Herman Baker lives with)
AM (Anita McLean, a woman that Herman Baker lives with)

Prior to Recorder being turned on: Chris Mumma and Cheryl Sullivan knocked on the
apartment door and the door was opened by Anita McLean. Chris and Cheryl told her they were
there to see Herman and she invited them in. Herman walked out of his bedroom and said hello.
Chris asked if it was a good time to talk and he said he was about to take a shower. Chris asked
if they could wait to talk to him after his shower. Herman said something about needing a
lawyer and started to walk back in his room. Chris asked him why he felt he needed a lawyer to
talk to her. She thought, based on his response, that the SBI had already come back to talk to
him. Chris and Cheryl were invited to have a seat by Anita and Chris asked Cheryl to turn the
recorder on.

(Indecipherable)

CM: Did they come again?

HB: Who?

CM: The SBI.

HB: I don’t want them. -

CM: Do you have a lawyer?

~ HB: No, I’'m going to get one.

CM: Do you want me to help you get one?

HB: Uh-uh (no).

CM: Why not?

HB: [ can get one on my own. I have enough money to get em.



CM: Okay, Herman, can you just talk to me for one more minute, please? Please? This man has

been in prison for 35 years.

HB: Yep.

Herman starts to open the outside door.

CM: Do you want to talk outside?

JM: Why don’t you close the door? You all have a seat. Close the door.
CM: Do you want to talk outside instead?

HB: No, let’s talk right here.

CM: You’re not worried about talking in front of them, are you?
HB: Nah. Nothing to be worried about. (Laughs).

CM: Yesterday, you told me— Do you remember what you told me yesterday?
HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: What did you tell me yesterday?

HB: What?

CM: What did you tell me yesterday?

HB: About what?

CM: About Joseph Sledge.

HB: Hm. About what?

CM: Did he ever téll you he committed the murders?

HB: Uh-uh (no).

CM: No?

HB: No.

CM: And who came and got you?

HB: That prison guard.



CM: Do you remember what the prison guard’s name was?

HB: No. Ican’t, I can’t....(indecipherable).

CM: And did anybody talk to you after that?

HB: No.

CM: So, before you went to trial, did they prep you? Did they tell you what to say?
HB: Yeah.

CM: Who prepped you?

HB: I don’t remember his name. (Indecipherable). FBI, SBI agent or something.
CM: SBI agent? What did he look like?

HB: I don’t remember. (Laughs along with someone else).

CM: The time— it’s really important.

HB: ’m tryin’. I can’t. (nervous laugh)

CM: An SBI agent?

HB: Mm-hm.

CM: And was there a sheriff deputy there?

HB: No.

CM: Just the SBI agent.

'HB: Mm-hm.

CM: And what did he tell you?

HB: They came to Pennsylvania. They left a note on the door with everything written on it.
They sent me to Pennsylvania.

CM: Before...right before trial?

HB: Yeah.



CM: So, the SBI agent came to see you right before trial.
HB: I didn’t see him. He left a note there.
CM: Okay, and did he— and what did the note say?

HB: Telling me something about...mentions about black pepper and stuff that....
(Indecipherable).

CM: So, there was a note on your door that told you what to say?
HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: Did you keep that note?

HB: NOO. (Laughter). I lost that. (Indecipherable).

CM: Okay, so, the note told you about the pepper can?
HB: Yea, they mentioned it first at the prison.

CM: They told you about it at the prison first?

HB: Yes, Spark...,Sparkman, I think his name was.
CM: Sparkman?

HB: Yeah, he was the warden.

CM: Warden. And was there anybody with Sparkman?
HB: There was a sergeant.

CM: A sergeant from the prison?

HB: Yeah.

CM: But not somebody from the Sherriff’s Department?
HB: Mm-mm (no).

CM: Um...And there was nobody from the SBI or the Sherriff’s Department with the prison
guards?

HB: No.



CM: So, the prison guards came to you...
HB: And they took me and put me in jail, downtown (Indecipherable).
CM: They put you down in the jail?
HB: Yep.
CM: And they talked to you there?
HB: Yes.
CM: And did they ever take you to a motel?
HB: No. During trial.
CM: During—
HB: They came and picked me up from Pennsylvania.
CM: And you stayed— okay.
HB: (Indecipherable).
CM: And did they talk to you in the car on the way back from Pennsylvania to North Carolina?
HB: Mm-hm (yes).
CM: Did they tell you what to say when you were in the car?
HB: Yes.
CM: And did they promise you a reward?
HB: rYes, and uh, fhey»got me -Qut o"f prisc_m early. )
CM: And they got you out of prison early?
HB: Yup.
CM: Did, um, the prosecutor ever talk to you before you got on the stand?
HB: (Silence).

CM: You don’t remember? (To CAS) Can I see the affidavit?



CAS: Yeah.

CM: So, I...] am trying to get to the truth, okay?

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: And I know what kind of position you were put in.

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: I understand, okay? Um, the people who are required to follow the law—
HB: Mm.. hm.

CM: Are— the law enforcement, the lawyers, you know. They have an oath.
HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: And we have to understand exactly what happened in this case.
HB: Yeah.

CM: Where did you meet Joseph?

HB: Um, in prison.

CM: In prison. Did you ever meet him in—

HB: In the streets, yea.

CM: Before prison?

HB: Hanging out at motel, I mean behind the truck stop downtown.
CM: The truck stop. Did you meet him in Fayetteville?

HB: Yeah, he stayed in Fayetteville.

CM: And you testified at trial that met him in 1969?

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: Did you meet— cause he wasn’t in Fayetteville in 1969.

HB: I don’t remember when it was. It was sometime in the 70s, 60s. Something like that.



CM: Okay, so you think you may have just gotten the year wrong or something?
HB: Yeah.

CM: Can you read at all? You want me— can I read this to you?

HB: I’ll sit right here. I got some glasses.

CM: Okay, why don’t you grab your glasses? How are you feeling today?

HB: Rough. |

CM: I’m sorry. (To CAS) We might need to change that line about (indecipherable)...Do you
have a good pen?

CAS: Yes.

CAS: My stamp’s out in the car. I can do it after. Forgot to bring it in.
CM: Okay.

CM: Do you want to sit down, Herman?

HB: Nah.

CM: You really— you really — I want you to trust me, okay?

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: I am only looking for the truth. This says—

HB: I can read it.

CM: You can read it. Okay. Can you read it out loud?

" 'HB: For what?

CM: Just so that I know that you can read it.
HB: (Indecipherable).

CM: If there’s anything that’s wrong on there, you tell me. (Clanging sound). Is that your right
birth date?

HB: I am disabled.



CM: You are disabled?

HB: Yes, I am.

CM: What’s your disability?

JM: Y’all parked so.mebod)'/ in the driveway.
CM: I’m sorry?

JM: Y’all parked somebody in the driveway.
CM: Oh, yes.

JM: They just called.

CM: Okay, we’ll move it.

JM: Yeah, they just called.

CAS: Do you want me to move it?

CM: Yeah, do you mind moving it?

CAS: Mm-hm (no).

CM: I’m sorry.

JM: Yeah, y’all parked— yeah, y’all parked there. Okay, they want—
CAS: Oh, oh, oh, I’'m sorry.

JM: I’'m sorry.

CAS:_ '_That’§ pka‘y._

CM: So, what’s your disability? I’1l write that on there.
HB: Chronic pancreatitis.

CM: Chronic...pancreatitis?

HB: Yes.

. CM: Pan-crea-titis. Do you feel better sitting down?



HB: I’m packing up and getting out of town today.

CM: And then if you just put your initials right there, because that’s in my writing, and I don’t
want that in my writing. I want that in your writing...There you go.

CM: Have you had any alcohol this morning?

HB: Mm-mm (no).

(Silence)

CM: (To AM) Sorry to bother you, ma’am.

AM: Oh, you’re alright.

(Silence)

CM: (To AM) I like the zebra print.

AM: (Laughs) Thank you.

CM: (Laughs). (To Baker) Anything that’s wrong on that, you just let me know.
(Silence) (knock on the door and CM reenters)

CM: Thank you.

CM: So this says law enforcement. You want me to add on here “the prison guards?”
HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: Can you initial both of those changes for me?

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: Second page. There’s not much more on that. Do you have a cold too? =
HB: Yes.

CM: Sinuses?

HB: Mm-hm.

(Silence)



CM: (To CAS) Get her name. Witness in there...that he’s reading it. Let her know that. (To

Baker) Is that all accurate?
HB: Yea, almost.

CM: What else is wrong, hon?
HB: Take all this out.

CM: Alright, you want me to take that out?

HB: Yeah, they didn’t....they let me out early...they let me out early.

CAS: You were pretty young back then, huh?
HB: Yeah.

CM: You were very young. How old were you?
HB: I don’t know. (Laughter)

CM: Twenties?

CAS: Yeah.

CM: I think you were in your twenties.

CAS: Early to mid twenties, yeah.

HB: Mm-hm.

CAS: Younger than me.

HB: (Laughs)
"CM: Okay, just initial that change there.

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: Okay. And then if you can just sign your name right there.

CAS: Would you like a copy of it with the changes? .
HB: Yeah.

CM: (to CAS): Okay, so we’ll just add the changes
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CAS: Okay.

CM: (To AM) Ma’am?

AM: Yes?

CM: I’'m sorry. Could I talk to you for one minute?

HB: (Laughs, sniffs)

AM: Yes, ma’am.

CM: I’'m just trying to— so, Herman just read this affidavit.

JM: (Indecipherable)

AM: Yes.

CM: Herman just read this affidavit. Herman, did you just read all this?
HB: Yes, I did.

CM: And then did you just sign this?

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: Okay, so I just want— we just need to have a witness that he read it and signed it.
AM: Come and sign this Martin, I don’t want my John Hill 6n nothing.
(Laughter)

JM: What is this about then? What does this to say that Herman’s — what he just said? What?
What does it say?

CM: It says that— are you friends— how do you know Herman?

JM: Good friend.

CM: That’s good. He’s going to need some good friends to take care of him. Um, Herman was

involved in a case about 35 years ago where they made offers to give him money and let him out

of prison if he would testify against somebody. And that person’s been in prison for almost 35

years and he’s innocent. Um, so we’re working on his case, and uh, so Herman’s read that
affidavit and signed it.

11



JM: Say you say he made....say this again, they made him an offer?

CM: They made him an offer.

JM: That if he testified against the guy?

CM: Yep.

IJM: Well, did he?

CM: Did he testify?

JM: Yeah.

CM: Yes, he did.

JM: Well, what’s that got to do with— what’s that got—

CM: This is the newspaper article.

JM: What’s that got to do with Herman now?

CM: Well, we’re trying to get this man out of prison. He’s still in prison. And the law
enforcement’s saying that he admitted to the murders to Herman, but Herman’s says he didn’t
admit to it. They fed him all the facts.

JM: Herman say he didn’t. So that don’t mean he...Herman say the man didn’t.
CM: That he didn’t do it.

JM: Yeah.

CM: Right. So, that’s what we’re trying to say now. He didn’t do it.

J M:_ O,h’, cause I-_Ie_z.rqlar; vyil] testify the man didn’t do it.

CM: That’s great. And all I want you to do is witness that he signed that document.
JM: Oh.

CM: That’s all—

JM: He didn’t do no wrong, did he?

CM: He didn’t do any wrong compared to what law enforcement did.
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JM: Oh. (Indecipherable). So, Herman said that he didn’t do it.

CM: Herman says Mr. Sledge did not commit the murders but the police wanted Herman to say

he did—

AM: That he did.

CM: That he did commit the murders back then.
AM: Okay.

JM: Oh, okay.

CAS: In exchange for—

AM: For money.

CAS: For prison sentence and money.

CM: And reduced sentence.

AM: Yeah.

CM: Okay?

JM: Oh, they wanted Herman to lie.

CM: They wanted Herman to lie.

JM: Oh.

CM: They got Herman to lie when he was a young man.

AM: Here (indecipherable). (hands the newspaper article back)

- CAS: You can keep that.

AM: Oh.

CM: That’s your copy. You can have that.
HB: I don’t want that.

CM: You don’t want it?

HB: (Laughs)

13



AM: He don’t need no reminders of that. (Laughs)
CM: And so, is this the copy with the changes?
CAS: Uh, yes. He needs to date that.
(Indecipherable)

CAS: I think so. To be safe.

JM: Herman said the man didn’t do it, didn’t he?
CM: On trial he said he did do it.

JM: On trial he said he did?

CM: Yep.

CAS: Right.

CM: Herman, can you put today’s date there? What is today’s date? Does anybody know?
HB: Nineteenth.

CAS: March 19",

CM: Good job (to Herman). So just put 19— 19", And then March. So, at trial 35 years ago, he
said he did do it. And he got some money and he got reduced time. Um.

JM: So, now what’s happening?
CM: Now we’re trying to get the truth out.
CAS: There’s also been some DNA evidence that does not connect.

CM: We had some physical evidence tested that shows he didn’t do it. Um, Herman, um, where
are you going to get a lawyer?

HB: Hm?
CM: Where are you going to get a lawyer?
HB: I don’t know.

CM: Okay—
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JM: He need a lawyer?

CM: He needs a lawyer.

HB: For what?

CM: I don’t want them threatening you with perjury charges.

HB: (Laughs)

CM: Okay. Um, [ mean...

AM: You should get a lawyer.

CM: The State Bureau of Investigation and the police— the DA’s office are probably going to
come talk to him again. Um, and, you know. If you want to.... go with the truth, I mean—as [
told you yesterday, the truth will set you free. (Laughs).

HB: Mm.

CM: Go with the truth. Just stick with the truth. Um.

JM: So, where you say he’s gonna need a lawyer cause.

AM: He gonna need a lawyer because he testified one thing and this is saying another now.
CAS: Yeah, yeah.

AM: And yeah, he gonna need a lawyer. And I’m sure when you’re up against a lie, like you
said, throw out some favors sometime (indecipherable) so we sometime make wrong decisions.
So we’re pressured into making wrong decisions. ~
CM: Do you want me to help you get a lawyer?

HB: Yeéah. =~

CM: Okay.

JM: (Indecipherable)

CM: You still have my contact information I gave you yesterday?

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: Okay, and is there a phone number that anybody has that we can call.
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IJM: Yes, ma’am. Okay, if we have to get a lawyer, will it be a paid lawyer?

CM: No, we’ll get him a— we’ll get him— I know what his financial situation is. We’ll get him
a lawyer.

JM: For free?

CM: Yeah.

IM: Okay, yeah. He need one.

CM: Yeah. Yeah.

CAS: But what is the phone number that we could reach?
JM: 910

CAS: Uh-huh.

JM: I’ll give you two phones though. 224-6900. That’s the cell phone. Home phone 910-920-
3166. So, either one of those. Preferably home phone if you don’t have to call cell.

CAS: And what’s your name? In case you answer.
JM: James.

CAS: And your last name?

JM: McLean.

CM: McLean. And is this your—
JM: My mate.

- CM: Your bait. (laughs).

JM: My mate.

CAS: My mate.

(Laughter)

JM: My mate.

CM: Your mate. And your name, ma’am?
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AM: My name is Anita, but I don’t want anybody to call me.

CM: Okay, that’s right.

CAS: Okay.

CM: Um, so, what you could try to do that would be helpful, Herman, is if you could try to think
back. Okay? Just try to spend some time thinking back on who talked to you and where they
were.

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: How many people were in the car driving from Pennsylvania?

HB: Two.

CM: Two?

HB: Mm-hm (yes).

CM: And did they talk to you about the case while you were driving?

HB: Oh, yes.

JM: This case happen in Pennsylvania?

CM: No, it happened here.

JM: Oh.

CM: But he was living in Pennsylvania at the time of the trial.

JM: And the murders happened here?-

~ CM: Yeah.

CAS: Mm-hm. They were just bringing him back to testify.

JM: Oh.

CAS: So, they drove him down here.

CM: And they talked to you about the case while they were driving?

HB: Mm-hm.

1¥



CM: And did they tell you what to say while they were driving? Yeah?
HB: I told you yes awhile ago.

CM: I know. I know. I’m not trying to pester you.

HB: (Laughs)

CM: But you gotta understand, this guy’s been in prison for 35 years, so I’m a little intense about
it. (Laughs).

JM: So, who do y’all work for?

CM: I work for the—

JM: You on some committee?

CM: The North Carolina Center on Actual Innocence.

CAS: Uh-huh. We’re a nonprofit. The inmates we work for don’t pay us for our work.
CM: Are you interested in reading this?

JM: I'll look at it.

AM: Why did they say the man— why did they accuse the man of the murder?

CM: Well, uh.

AM: I’m just curious.

CM: Two white women who were murdered, and he was black, and he had escaped from prison.

He was in for a larceny charge, and he escaped around that area. So, he was—he was a likely
suspect, but...

AM: Okay. He was in prison for larceny?

CM: Yep

CAS: And he was also a young man back then. |
AM: Back then.

CAS: Mm-hm (yes).
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AM: Okay, I see what you’re saying.

CM: You probably wish I had never come around, don’t you, Herman?
HB: (Laughs).

JM: So, you’re going to make sure he gets a lawyer?

CM: Yeah.

CAS: And I wrote all the changes that you had made.

CM: So, these are the changes. And then, you can have a copy.
CAS: You can keep that.

HB: Yeah.

CM: So you know what you signed, okay?

HB: Hmm. (Laughs/sobs).

CM: I’m sorry.
HB: (Indecipherable) shit.

CM: I know. I know. But you were a young man, and you had a lot of pressure on you, okay?

And, you know, young men make mistakes. Uh, sworn law enforcement don’t make mistakes.

They do things on purpose.

AM: Mm-hm.

JM: Any of these people still on the force?

CM: What’s that?

“JM: Any of these people still working? =

CM: Uh, they’re not currently active, but they’re still around.

AM: Still around, that’s all that matters.

CAS: And only recently not active, so.

CM: Right. So, one thing we’re gonna wanna know is what other cases they worked on.

JM: Oh, so there might be other people?

19



CM: Maybe.

JM: Oh.

CAS: You do it once—

JM: Yeah.

CM: It’s a good— you know, you uh, you got something that works, you’ll tend to do it again.
AM: Yeah.

JM: Yeah.

CAS: And the worst part is whoever did it is still out there. And it was a horrible crime.

JM: (Indecipherable)

AM: Why did he kill the women?

CAS: We don’t know.

AM: Here you go, Herman. (hands him a plate of food)

CM: Aw, that’s nice. (Laughter). What do you say?

HB: Thank you. I was gonna.

(Laughter)

AM: He’s a great cook. We cook for each other.

CM: I’'m glad that you guys have—

"~ HB: (Indecipherable) ™ ~

CM: I’'m glad you found somebody to be with— to live with and be friends with again, Herman.
AM: Oh, yes. He’s a great man. He’s a great man, you know?

JM: We all done made mistakes years ago and I can understand sometime, you know, they can
pressure you into saying things you don’t really mean, you know.

CM: Mm-hm (yes).
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JM: (Indecipherable)

CM: Right. Alright, well you have my number, and I’ll be back in touch with somebody about
uh, somebody you can call, okay?

JM: About the lawyer?

CM: Yes.

HB: Okay. I guess I’ll be here.

CM: Don’t go anywhere. That would be a bad mistake.
HB: I don’t care.

CM: No. Seriously.

HB: I’'m about dead anyway.

(Laughter)

CM: That would be a bad mistake to run away from this. Okay? You guys need to explain that to
him.

HB: I wanna know who told you where I was. They they gonna make a bad ‘mistake if I find out.
CM: No, nobody told us who you were, where you were.

JM: Yea they did.

CAS: We saw you walking down the street.

CM: We saw you walking down the street.

M Inthisarea? lughs)

CM: Nobody, yeah, I mean, there’s somebody—

JM: You don’t have no— you don’t have no charge or nothing, do you?

CM: Any charges on him?

JM: Yeah.

CM: No.
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AM: They don’t, but they could.

CM: No. But he doesn’t want to run. That would look bad. Um, and you know, I always believe
there’s another force helping us find the information we need to get these people out, Herman.
So, I’'m sorry, but nobody told us where to find you.

HB: Yeah, they did.

CM: And you’ll have to blame somebody upstairs for that.

HB: Yea they did. If they call me snitch now...all these people running around the area looking
for me. Leaving cards and shit.

CM: I’m sorry. I’m sorry.

HB: Can’t even go around my friends.

JM: (To Baker) Who knew about this besides us and you? Nobody.

AM: What he’s saying is they be talking about this

CM: Hey, Herman. When we left you cards, we never told anybody anything about this.
HB: You’re lying.

CM: No, we didn’t Herman. We told them that you might be able to help us with the case we
were working on.

HB: Mm-hm.

~ CM: That’s all we said.

HB: Yep.

. _C_M: Now? the newspaper article is out there.
CAS: But it’s also in Raleigh.

CM: It’s also in Raleigh.

CAS: It’s not a Fayetteville article.

HB: I know.
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—

AM: But then you need to look at it— you need to understand what he’s saying too, you know?
You know, being out here. You know, people around him thinking he talking. You know, it’s
pressure.

CM: I understand.

AM: Yeah, and there’s pressure on me too, because, you know what I’m saying? Because we got
to stay here. I don’t even know what’s going on. But I understand both sides.

CM: And I feel for that, and I’m sorry for that.
AM: Yea. We don’t want no trouble coming here, I know. You know what I’'m saying?
CM: But this man’s still in prison.

AM: I understand what you’re saying, but when you bring all this to the plate and then, like I
said, and then you bring it to our plates— you see what I’m saying?

CM: I understand.

CAS: It’s just a difficult situation all around for everyone. Absolutely.

CM: So, what’s important is to do the best—

AM: I don’t want nobody coming to this house. You know what I’'m saying?

CM: What’s important is to do the best thing in a bad situation. And the best thing—
AM: The best thing by everybody. You know, to try to.

CM: The best thing in this bad situation is for you to tell the truth and follow through on it at this
point. Cause that’s where you can hold you head up high.

HB: sobbing

'CM: I’ soiry. Alright. Okay. Thank yoi.

AM: You’re welcome.

CAS: Thank you.

CM: Herman, I will help you in any way I can, okay?
HB: Nice meeting ya. Goodbye. (Indecipherable).

AM: Y’all have a blessed day.
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AFTFIDAVIT

" STATE OF NORTIT CAROLINA )
)
COUNTY OF )

, being competent to testily, having
and being first duly sworn, depose and say:

L_WAIINCE R TANNER
first-hand khowledge of the facts stated below,
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. There are additional pages atlached and made a part of this, my affidavit. (Sign at

the bottom of each page.)
Signature: __LJ a’.ﬂzflf.‘b 2 Dammen

Address:

Sworn lo and subscribed before me this

<Ed yof__jﬂ/\@z} _ 199 (:
)<§a41Q¢2%~/LC/, .

.N?lan; Public.
) ---T7

My commission expires:
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o~ STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA IN THE GENERAL COURT OF JUSTICE
( COUNTY OF COLUMBUS SUPERIOR COURT DIVISION
No. 78 CRS 2415-2416

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )
)

V. ) AFFIDAVIT
)
JOSEPH SLEDGE, JR., )
Defendant. )

NOW COMES the Affiant, Herman Lee Baker, Jr., who attests to the following:

1. My name is Herman Lee Baker, Jr. My birth date is 5/24/1950. I currently reside on
Lawrence Avenue in Fayetteville, North Carolina.

\v
\
\(\(\ﬂ\ *\'\{\S I am under no disability, or undue, or improper influence of any kind. Nor am I under

Q NW any duress of any kind.
3. Iam not under the influence of alcohol or drugs.

4. I am giving this affidavit of my own free will and fully understand what I am doing. No
one has promised me anything or threatened me in any way in order for me to sign this
affidavit.

5. In August 1978, I testified in the above-captioned criminal matter. I testified that Joseph
Sledge had confessed to me that he had murdered two women in Bladen County.

6. My testimony was not truthful. Joseph Sledge never told me he murdered anyone.

7. Although Joseph Sledge did not admit to committing any such crimes, I testified that he
did because of promises of financial reward made to me by law enforcement.

8. Iwas in “the hole” at the prison and I was moved to a county jail where law enforcement
spoke to me. I was never taken to a motel to be interviewed.

9. I did not have any personal knowledge of any information relating to the murders of the
two women in Bladen County. Law enforcement fed me all the details of the crime to

which I testlﬁed
150n é’u M As
10. Law enforcem nt told meabout the pepper can at the crime scene.

11. Law enfqrcement told me about the victim’s broken jaw.
\(N\“ (rxj th ﬁ““"dﬂZJz
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I # me onAfr &u/
13. wageﬁﬁered-my-helpﬂmﬁrm;-pnmw I was oals-promiséd feward money.

g
12. Law enforcement told me about the reward money in this case. ‘/I) {}"
“They Fold  me They wndol [
ew

14. To the best of my knowledge and belief, all of the information included in this affidavit is
true, complete, and is made in good faith.

15. 1 read this affidavit before I signéd it, and I have been offered a copy of this affidavit.

Further, Affiant says not.
This the é @ day of %ﬂ/(-dx . ,2013
"7{@\/ &j 1,

Herman Lee Baker, Jr. :

M’/'n?ff" | P M%_‘____

Swom to and subscribed before me this the lq—mday of March, 2013.

-

“\\\mulmm,,,,
. W\009 Nipys,
NOTARY PUBLIC
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NCIIC-FSR-100 (Rev. 3/10/10)

NORTH CAROLINA INNOCENCE INQUIRY COMMISSION

MEMORANDUM
State of North Carolina vs. Joseph Sledge (78 CRS 2415-2416)
TO: District Attorney Jon David
Sheriff Prentis Benston

SBI Special Agent Chad Barefoot
Commission Case File

FROM: Sharon Stellato, Commission Associate Director
Lindsey Guice Smith, Commission Associate Counsel

DATE: September 5, 2013

SUBJECT: Search of Bladen County Sheriff’s Office Evidence Facilities

From August 26 - 29, 2013, Associate Director Sharon Stellato (Stellato) and Associate
Counsel Lindsey Guice Smith (Smith) searched the Bladen County Sheriff’s Office
(BCSO) facilities for evidence or files related to the Joseph Sledge case.

Prior to this search, Stellato and Smith met with Lt. Singletary and Sheriff Benston of the
BCSO and were informed that a diligent search had previously been conducted to locate
files and evidence.

The Commission was searching for physical evidence collected during the initial
investigation of the Joseph Sledge case, as well as case files associated with the case.

This evidence included, but was not limited to, a package of evidence that BCSO had
received from LabCorp in 2010. Although the package was addressed to Lt. Singletary
and signed for by Lt. Bridgers, the BCSO had been unable to determine what happened to
the package after it was signed for.

The Commission provided evidence search procedures to BCSO and Sheriff Benston
agreed to allow the Commission staff to search all BCSO evidence facilities. This report
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documents evidence located in the Joseph Sledge case, as well as evidence storage issues
noted during the Commission search.

The following is a list of all areas searched by Stellato and Smith:
Evidence Room inside BCSO

Secured Gun Vault inside BCSO

Personal Lockers of Investigators

Braxton Building

Narcotics Evidence Room

Conex Storage Containers 1-13

Storage Room in basement of BC Courthouse

Evidence Locker inside of office in BC Courthouse
Historical Society in basement of BC Courthouse

Evidence Room Inside BCSO

This room contains three large evidence lockers. These lockers are short term storage for

Lt. Singletary and Det. Morgan Johnson, as well as former BCSO officers. Lt. Singletary

stated that short term storage meant that the cases were either pending or recently tried.
‘In addition to the three lockers, there is evidence stored on top of the lockers and on top

of a refrigerator located in the room. This room is also used as a storage room for

miscellaneous equipment. No evidence or files related to the Sledge case were located.

It is unclear how the room is secured or who has access to the room. There is no
inventory of the evidence stored in this room.

Secured Gun Room Inside BCSO

This room requires two keys and therefore two BCSO employees in order to enter. Lt.
Singletary and Sgt. Greg Bullard provided access to the gun room and Sgt. Bullard
remained inside the room during the entire search. The room has guns along a wall and
along both sides of a shelf in the middle of the room. There is also evidence stored in
between the shelf with guns and evidence stored on the floor. Additionally, there is a
barrel filled with guns that is used for evidence scheduled for destruction. Along the
back wall are 12 lockers, seven of which had locks.

There are four boxes on the top of the set of lockers. One of the boxes was labeled
“Phillip Little drug cases.” This box was searched and Stellato located a small file
labeled Joseph Sledge in the box.

The Commission requested that the locks be removed from the lockers and, after some
discussion, the locks were cut off five of the lockers. The remaining two locks were
removed by Lt. Singletary and Sgt. Jeffery Tyler who had keys/combinations to those
locks. Sgt. Bullard then began removing evidence from each locker. He began with
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locker #4. Stellato looked in the locker and observed that it was full of evidence. Sgt.
Bullard then placed the evidence from locker #4 in a box. The box was brought to the
conference room table (just outside the gun room) where Smith began going through it.
Smith immediately noted a package labeled “Sledge” and notified Stellato. Upon further
examination, a second package labeled “Sledge” was noted. The packages were
envelopes which were returned from the SBI. Upon review of the lab reports attached to
the outside of the packages, it was noted that one contains the empty Ziploc bag and
canister sent to the SBI in 2008. The second contains all of the latent lifts returned from
the SBI in 2007.

In looking through additional evidence in the box, Stellato located another envelope
addressed to Phillip Little. The envelope contains a letter from Adrian Sellers to Phillip
Little and two small handwritten notebooks related to the Sledge investigation.

Smith provided a letter outlining the Commission’s official request to take custody of the
evidence. After discussion between Stellato, S/A Barefoot and Lt. Singletary, it was
agreed that the Commission would take of custody of the evidence pursuant to N.C.G.S.
15A-1471.

Stellato continued going through the contents of each locker. No additional Sledge
evidence was located. The remaining lockers are still used by officers in active
investigations. Stellato looked in each locker and determined that guns and a small
amount of evidence is stored in them.

The majority of the evidence located in the locked lockers was narcotics and money. The
BCSO indicated that they were not aware of any of this evidence, including the narcotics
and money, inside the lockers. Sgt. James Hufham was tasked with collecting the
narcotics and money found inside the lockers.

Although this room was secured with two keys, the contents of the room were unknown
to BCSO personnel. There is no inventory of the evidence stored in this room.

Personal Lockers of Investigators

The Commission searched the personal evidence lockers of Sgt. Tyler, Det. Marlowe and
Det. Kelley. Each individual locker is maintained in their office and each is secured with
alock. The Commission was informed that these evidence lockers are used for short
term storage. No evidence or files related to the Sledge case were located. There is no
inventory of the evidence stored in the personal evidence lockers.

Braxton Building

On August 13, 2013 and August 14, 2013, in anticipation of the Commission’s pending
search request, officers from the BCSO located two BCSO files related to the Sledge
case. Smith and Stellato went through every file located in the building. Smith and
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Stellato noted several items of evidence intermingled with files. Smith discovered a
bullet loose in a box of files and Det. Marlowe seized this item as evidence. Other
evidence included fingerprints, DNA extracts, blood samples and other unknown physical
evidence. Det. Marlowe stated that BCSO would have to go through each box and pull
out any evidence that should be stored in the evidence room and not with the files. He
further indicated that this would be done at a later date.

In addition to physical evidence locates in case files, Stellato and Smith located a drawer
in a file cabinet that contained brown paper bags of evidence. Lt. Singletary indicated
that this was evidence from 1980°s cases. This evidence was not secured.

No evidence or files related to the Sledge case were located. There is no inventory of the
evidence stored in this room.

Narcotics Evidence Room

The Narcotics Evidence Room is located inside the Braxton Building and maintained
separately by the Narcotics Unit. This room is secured and Sgt. Hutham escorted Smith
and Stellato into the room. This room contained lockers and evidence vaults that require
combinations/keys in order to be opened. Sgt. Hufham opened each locker within the
room and showed Smith and Stellato each item of evidence. No evidence or files related
to the Sledge case were located.

Conex Storage Containers 1-13

Smith and Stellato were accompanied by Sgt. Hutham and Det. Marlowe to the offsite
evidence storage facilities for BCSO. This facility contains several Conex units which
were previously shown to Smith and Stellato by Lt. Singletary on August 15, 2013. On
August 15, 2013, Lt. Singletary told Stellato and Smith that only Conex’s 1, 2, 3,4, 5, 6,
7, and 8 belonged to the BCSO and that the remaining Conex’s on the site did not contain
any evidence (there are thirteen Conexes on the site).

This offsite facility is gated and located behind the Public Works Dept. The gated facility
also contains several vehicles and storage for other county agencies. The Conexes are
large steal containers (similar in appearance to train cars). They are not climate
controlled and are estimated to reach temperatures of 120 degrees or higher during the
summer months.

The Conexes were searched in an order decided by the Commission based on information
they received prior to this search, and later during the search. Because of this, the Conex
numbers will appear out of order below.

Most of the Conexes have a combination lock and a key lock although some of the
Conexes were unlocked. According to Chief Deputy Dunn, the combinations on each
Conex should be the same. According to Det. Marlowe, there are keys to the Conexes
that can be checked out in order for officers to deposit and retrieve evidence.
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Conex S

Upon entering Conex 5, Stellato noted that there was a new notebook with a sign-in sheet
located inside. Det. Marlowe indicated that each Conex now has a sign-in sheet located
inside to track who comes in and out. The sign-in sheets are new and only contained one
signature line prior to this date.

Conex 5 was previously described to Smith and Stellato by Lt. Singletary as the blood
drying chamber which also contained evidence from older cases from the 1970’s and
1980’s. Smith and Stellato went through the evidence in Conex 5 and did not locate any
evidence related to the Sledge case. Smith and Stellato noted that there were several bags
marked “UNKNOWN.” Smith and Stellato made the decision not to open these
packages as Lt. Singletary previously stated that these items were recently hanging in
Conex 5. When Lt. Singletary was preparing for the Commission’s search, he made the
decision to package the items so that they would not be in the Commission’s way during
the search. Lt. Singletary stated that the items were from unknown suicides and
homicides. The packages that Smith and Stellato saw that were marked “UNKNOWN”
were clearly newly packaged and were therefore not opened. Conex 5 contains biological
evidence and there is no inventory for items in the Conex.

Conex 8

Conex 8 was previously described to Smith and Stellato by Lt. Singletary as containing
no physical evidence. Smith and Stellato searched Conex 8 and noted that it did not
contain any physical evidence, but instead contains equipment and supplies for disaster
relief.

Conex 7

Conex 7 was previously described by Lt. Singletary as containing evidence from current
and former officers at BCSO. Smith and Stellato noted that Conex 7 contains evidence
stored by Det. Marlowe and Det. Johnson as well as former officers. Smith and Stellato
searched the Conex and noted that several items of evidence were not sealed. Upon
notification that items were not sealed, Sgt. Hufham and Det. Marlowe sealed the items.
Additionally, Stellato noted that rape kits, DNA extracts and other unsealed biological
evidence is being stored in the Conex. Stellato notified Sgt. Hufham and Det. Marlowe
of this. Further, Stellato and Smith located four packages that were identified only by
SBI Lab number. Because there were no additional markings to indicate what case the
items were associated with, Smith and Stellato requested that the items be opened. Two
of the packages were identified as belonging to other cases. The other two packages
could not be identified and Det. Marlowe stated that BCSO would have to contact the
SBI to determine to which cases the evidence belonged. Smith and Stellato did not locate
any evidence related to the Sledge case in this Conex. Conex 7 contains biological
evidence, unsealed and unlabeled items of evidence and there is no inventory for items in
the Conex.
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Conex 6

Conex 6 was previously described by Lt. Singletary as containing evidence from current
and former officers at BCSO. Smith and Stellato noted that Conex 6 contains mostly
evidence from Lt. Singletary and former officers. Smith and Stellato searched Conex 6
and did not locate any evidence related to the Sledge case. Smith and Stellato informed
Sgt. Hufham and Det. Marlowe about additional biological evidence, including rape kits,
located in Conex 6 as well as unsealed items of evidence. At this time Sgt. Hufham and
Det. Marlowe made the decision that the individual officers responsible for evidence in
each Conex would need to come and seal the evidence for which they were responsible.
Conex 6 contains biological evidence, unsealed and unlabeled items of evidence and
there is no inventory for items in the Conex.

Conex 4

Smith and Stellato had previously been in Conex 4 on August 15, 2013 with Lt.
Singletary. Lt. Singletary showed Smith and Stellato Conex 4 on August 15th as it is the
Conex containing evidence in his cases. Immediately upon entering Conex 4 on August
27th, Smith and Stellato noted that Conex 4 contained approximately three times the
amount of evidence it contained on August 15th. On August 15th, Smith and Stellato
noted that Conex 4 contained a small amount of evidence that was neatly stored, most of
which was from recent cases. On August 27th, Smith and Stellato noted that Conex 4
was full of evidence that was not neatly stored. This Conex was previously described by
Lt. Singletary as containing evidence from current and former officers at BCSO. Smith
and Stellato noted evidence from Lt. Singletary and Sgt. Tyler, as well as former officers.
During the search of Conex 4, Smith and Stellato had Det. Marlowe and Sgt. Hutham call
BCSO to look up several case names as many of the packages in this Conex were only
labeled with the OCA#. All of these cases were identified and none were related to the
Sledge case.

During the search of Conex 4, Stellato opened a gray interlocking tote. Upon opening the
tote, Stellato noted a box with a FedEx shipping label. The shipping label stated that the
package was from Shaun Weiss of LabCorp and addressed to Lt. Singletary on
10/11/2010. Stellato removed the package from the tote and asked Smith to look at the
package. Upon examining the package, Smith noted that the SBI stickers on the outside
of the package contained the SBI Lab number (R200828689) that is associated with the
Sledge case. Stellato and Smith determined that this was the package that had been
declared missing by BCSO since its return to BSCO in October 2010. It was agreed that
the Commission would take of custody of the evidence pursuant to N.C.G.S. 15A-1471.

No additional evidence related to the Sledge case was located in Conex 4. Conex 4
contains biological evidence and there is no inventory for items in the Conex. In
addition, several propane tanks are stored in Conex 4.
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Conexes 9-13

Upon arriving at BCSO on the third day of the search, Stellato was approached by Chief
Deputy H'W. Dunn. Chief Deputy Dunn informed Stellato that he had evidence stored in
a Conex at the outdoor storage facility. Chief Deputy Dunn stated that it was unlikely
that Smith and Stellato would have been informed about this storage area as only
evidence from two counterfeit goods cases were stored there. Smith and Stellato
informed Chief Deputy Dunn that they would still need to search the Conex.

Stellato and Smith searched Chief Deputy Dunn’s Conex (noted as Conex 13 for
reporting purposes but not labeled as such). No evidence for the Sledge case was located.
Conex 13 only contains counterfeit goods and no physical evidence was noted.

Smith and Stellato inquired about the remaining Conexes on the property. Smith and
Stellato entered an unlocked Conex. This Conex is not labeled with a number but is
Conex 12 for reporting purposes. Conex 12 contains mostly equipment and no physical
evidence was noted. Smith and Stellato did not locate any evidence related to the Sledge
case.

Smith and Stellato were also able to enter a second unlocked Conex (yellow) which was
not labeled with a number but is Conex 11 for reporting purposes. Conex 11 contains
some bicycles with evidence tags, but other than those, no additional evidence was noted.
Smith and Stellato did not locate any evidence related to the Sledge case.

Chief Deputy Dunn was able to open Conex 10 (green Conex). Conex 10 contains
aircraft parts. Stellato did not locate any evidence in Conex 10.

Chief Deputy Dunn cut the lock off of Conex 9 (orange). Conex 9 contains filing
cabinets, equipment and some evidence. Smith and Stellato searched Conex 9 and
although they noted physical evidence, they did not locate any evidence related to the
Sledge case. There is no inventory for the evidence stored in Conex 9.

Conex 3

Conex 3 had previously been described by Lt. Singletary as the Conex used for drugs,
though he indicated he did not think there was anything currently in it. Earlier in the
week, Sgt. Hufham had informed Smith and Stellato that Conex 3 is used for storage of
alcohol. He further stated that drugs used to be stored in Conex 3, but that they had all
been moved to the Narcotics Evidence Room at the Braxton Building and no narcotics
were stored in Conexes. However, Stellato and Smith located narcotics in Conexes 4 and
6 and informed Sgt. Hufham, who indicated he would address the issue. Upon entering
Conex 3, Smith and Stellato noted that the Conex is used for storage of alcohol as well as
files. No evidence or files related to the Sledge case were located in Conex 3.
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Conex 2

Conex 2 is divided into two sections. Conex 2B is labeled “DARE” and all of the
materials in the Conex appear to be DARE training materials. Conex 2A contains BCSO
uniforms. No evidence or files related to the Sledge case were located in Conex 2.

Conex 1

Conex 1 is.divided into three sections. Conex 1A contains files and police car
equipment. Conex 1B has evidence and miscellaneous items. Conex 1C has a large
amount of evidence, MREs and other disaster relief equipment. Smith and Stellato
searched Conexes 1A, B and C and did not locate any files or evidence associated with
the Sledge case. There is no inventory for evidence stored in Conexes 1B and 1C.

Storage Room in Basement of BC Courthouse

The storage room in the basement of the Bladen County Courthouse was viewed by
Stellato and Smith on August 15, 2013 during a meeting with Investigator Pait of the
Bladen County District Attorney’s Office. On that date, Smith and Stellato noted that
there was physical evidence stored in the room, along with what was described as jail
records, and number 10 cans of food for inmates at the jail. Smith and Stellato looked
through the evidence that they could access on August 15th and did not locate any
evidence related to the Sledge case. On that date, Jail Administrator, Benny Lennon,
stated that he would be cleaning up the room that afternoon or the following day. In light
of this, Smith and Stellato decided to search the room when they returned on August
26th.

Upon entering the room on August 26th, Smith and Stellato noted that it appeared to
contain additional items and be less organized than it was on August 15th. Therefore, on
August 29th, Smith and Stellato conducted a search of this location.

Det. Marlowe and Sgt. Hufham brought each box of files to a table in the hallway where
Smith and Stellato went through them. These files are primarily related to jail activities.
Stellato and Smith examined the contents of each file or box.

Stellato and Smith did not locate any files or evidence related to the Sledge case in this
room. At the completion of the search, Stellato and Smith assisted Det. Marlowe in
repackaging the evidence that was located in the storage room. There was evidence from
at least three cases in the 1980’s. Det. Marlowe stated that he was taking custody of the
evidence and would store it in his office until such time as BCSO could properly
inventory the items and place them in a suitable storage location.

Evidence Locker Inside of Office in BC Courthouse

Smith and Stellato were taken to an evidence locker located inside an office in the Bladen
County Courthouse. Although this locker is located in the Bladen County Courthouse,
Lt. Singletary has the key and the locker is maintained by BCSO. Smith and Stellato
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looked through the evidence in the locker. The locker contains evidence for one case,
State v. Ernest Wright. No files evidence related to the Sledge case were located.

Historical Society In Basement of BC Courthouse

On August 29", S/A Barefoot called Stellato and informed of her another room that he
had previously searched with Lt. Singletary. S/A Barefoot came to the Bladen County
Courthouse and showed Stellato and Smith the room he previously searched with Lt.
Singletary. The room was locked, but S/A Barefoot informed Stellato, Smith and Sgt.
Hufham that Lt. Singletary had informed and shown him that the only way to unlock the
door was to use a knife. S/A Barefoot then used a knife to unlock the door. S/A Barefoot
showed the area to Stellato and Smith. The area contains four rooms. It appears to be
maintained by the historical society and contains many old items. Stellato and Smith
searched the location and did not locate any files or evidence related to the Sledge case.
This location does contain newspaper from the time of the Sledge case.

Summary
Although not specifically listed above, Stellato and Smith noted several items of

biological evidence that were improperly stored during their search. This includes, but is
not limited to, unsealed items of evidence (rape kits, underwear from sexual assaults,
bloody clothing, etc), sealed items that were unaccounted for (drugs and money) and
items of biological evidence stored in extreme temperatures and high humidity. Further,
throughout the search, the BCSO was unable to provide an inventory of items stored in
each location and was unaware of several items of evidence being stored at various
locations (i.e. evidence found in the basement storage facility, evidence located in files in
the Braxton Bldg, etc).

Stellato and Smith met with Sheriff Benston and Chief Deputy Dunn and briefly
informed them of the results of the search. Stellato and Smith agreed to provide Sheriff
Benston and DA David with a report detailing their search and the evidence storage
issues that they noted during their search. Stellato and Smith also offered to assist with
recommendations in the future at the request Sheriff Benston.

Although the Commission feels confident in the areas that Stellato and Smith searched, it
is not confident that all locations which may contain evidence or files have been
searched. Nor does the Commission feel confident that the items collected from the
crime scene, and not introduced at trial, have been destroyed. As such, the Commission
plans to continue efforts to determine other locations where evidence may be stored.

Attachments
o Files (2) containing all video and photographs taken by the Commission during
the search of BCSO.

e Spreadsheet detailing items of evidence that were opened during the search.
e Commission Evidence search procedures.
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Curriculum Vitae
Joseph M. Ludas (Marty)
Forensic Press
112 North Avenue
Wake Forest, North Carolina 27587
martyludas@aol.com / tel: 919-671-3024 / 11-29-2014

Forensic Evidence Examiner: Latent Fingerprint and Footwear Impression Analysis

2001-present

Forensic Press / Wake Forest, North Carolina

Latent print and footwear evidence defense expert: North Carolina Indigent Defense Services.
Evidence examination for defense cases: pretrial and cases on appeal.

Submit case examination reports and testify as defense witness.

Pro bono casework and Duke Law School Innocence Project consultant.

Multimedia video production and instructional fingerprint tutorial development.

1982-2001

City/County Bureau of Identification / Raleigh, North Carolina

Latent fingerprint, automated fingerprint identification and footwear evidence examiner, retired 2001.
Primary duties consisted of fulltime casework analysis in latent print and footwear evidence.

Testified in state and federal courts in approximately 350 cases as an expert in the comparative analysis of latent print
and footwear evidence. Retired in 2001.

1975-1982

North Carolina State Bureau of Investigation Crime Laboratory

Special Agent, latent print and footwear evidence examiner, assistant latent evidence section supervisor.

Testified in approximately 50 cases as an expert in the comparative analysis of latent print and footwear evidence.

1972-1975
Federal Bureau of Investigation / Washington D.C.

Fingerprint technician assigned to the Technical Section of the Identification Division.
Searched arrest fingerprint cards in FBI database utilizing the Henry Classification System.

Specialized Training, Professional Affiliations and Certifications

e 1972: FBI Science of Fingerprints Course: 540 hours

e 1979: SBI Latent Evidence Section Latent Print Apprenticeship Training, 18 months

e 1981: Awarded the North Carolina Advanced Law Enforcement Certificate

e 1993-present: Member of the International Association of Identification (IAl)

e 1994-2007: International Association for Identification Certified Latent Print Examiner (CLPE)
e  1996-2010: International Association for Identification Certified Footwear Examiner (CFWE)
e 1983-2002: North Carolina Basic Law Enforcement Certified Instructor (BLET)

Education

1972 Graduate of Carmel High School for Boys / Mundelein, lllinois
1977 Wake Technical Community College: Associate in Arts, Police Science Technology
1981 North Carolina Wesleyan College: Bachelor of Science Criminal Justice, cum laude and departmental honors

Curriculum Vitae
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Academic Curricula Development and Evidence Publications
2013-present
e Authored the Friction Ridge Examiner Competency Training Initiative certified by International Association for Iden-
tification for professional training certification and re-certification training credits.
e Authored and Published Fingerprint Practitioner Workbook, ISBN 0-9650202-3-1

2010-2012
Awarded Department of Justice earmark grant from Wake Tech for the Friction Ridge Examiner Competency Trammg

Initiative. Designed digital classroom, latent print workstations, video-based tutorial lesson plans and PrintScore™ oper-
ative assignments and training exercises.

2007-2010

Developed and instructed fingerprint curriculum for the Wake Tech Criminal Justice Program: Friction Ridge Analysis CIC
245 Introduction and CIC 246 Advanced.

2004-2008

Developed forensic curriculum with operative exercises for college-level instruction and professional crime lab training.
Publications with lesson plans:

e The lllustrated Lecture of Fingerprint Identification

e  Fingerprint Comparison

e Latent Print Development with Magnetic Powder

e Latent Print Processing with Ninhydrin

e Cyanoacrylate Fuming

e Footwear Identification

e Mock Crime Scene Investigation

2004-present
Developed forensic evidence curriculum for Law Tech Custom Publishing, San Clemente, Ca. and Corinthian Colleges.
Publication with lesson plans: Fingerprint and Impression Analysis Workbook, 1SBN: 978-1-889315-95-9

2004-2007

Developed forensic evidence curricula for Holt, Rinehart & Winston science textbooks, Austin, Texas.
Classroom Forensics™ & Scientific Inquiry

1996-2007

Joint publication, training and product development with John Carrington at Sirchie Finger Print Labs, Inc. Youngsville,
NC. Publications, lesson plans and operative assignments

e The AFIS Curriculum (Three day instructional workshop) 2000-2003

e The Science at Your Fingertips Educational Series

e  PrintScore™ 100-300 Fingerprint Comparison Exercises

e TrakScore™ Footwear Comparison Exercises

1996
Established Forensic Press / Raleigh, NC.
Authored Classroom Forensics™ publications, lesson plans and operative assignments.

e  Fingerprint Discoveries: The lllustrated Textbook of Fingerprint Identification. ISBN 0-9650202-0-7
Fingerprint Discoveries Workbook: Assignments, Projects and Tests. ISBN 0-9605202-2-03

Curriculum Vitae
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North Carolina Innocence Inquiry Commission Forensic Testing
State v. Joseph Sledge — 78 CRS 2415-2416 (Columbus)

Item Tested Results

Dress — Aileen Davis e Failed to reveal chemical indications for the presence of semen

e Tested by SBI, LabCorp and Cellmark

No lab was able to obtain a male DNA profile

Failed to reveal chemical indications for the presence of semen

Tested by SBI, LabCorp and Cellmark

Partial male DNA profile obtained by SBI

Excludes Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Billy Ray Hales, Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray

Benton, Daniel Slater Haire lll, Elisha Robinson, William Thomas Haire and Robert

Washington

Dress — Josephine Davis | e Failed to reveal chemical indications for the presence of semen

e Tested by SBI, LabCorp and Cellmark

e Partial male DNA profile obtained by SBI

e Excludes Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Billy Ray Hales, Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray
Benton, Daniel Slater Haire lll, Elisha Robinson, William Thomas Haire and Robert
Washington

e Profile does not match the male profile from the Slip of Aileen Davis obtained by

SBI (see above)

Failed to reveal chemical indications for the presence of semen

Tested by SBI, LabCorp and Cellmark

Partial male DNA profile obtained by LabCorp

Excludes Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Billy Ray Hales, Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray

Benton, Daniel Slater Haire lll, Elisha Robinson, William Thomas Haire and

Washington '

e Profile is consistent with profile from Dress of Josephine Davis obtained by SBI (see
above)

Pepper Can e There were no identifiable latent prints noted or developed

e Tested by SBI and Cellmark

e No DNA profiles were developed (male or female) from testing on the pepper can

e Pepper remaining inside of can and pepper remaining inside of evidence bag
containing pepper can were weighed. Weight of pepper is ~30.5 grams (~1.076
ounces). Pepper canisa 2.0 ounce can. Approximately ¥ of pepper remained in
pepper can

Linoleum e Tested by Cellmark

e The partial male profile obtained is a mixture of at least two males

e Billy Ray Hales cannot be excluded as a contributor to this mixture (Note: Hales is
the grandson/nephew of the Victims; he and his family lived next door to the
Victims; he and his family had been in the Victims’ home)

e Excludes Joseph Sledge and Johnny Ray Benton

e Due to the partial mixture profile and the possibility of allelic dropout, no
determination can be made regarding Herman Baker, Samuel Smith, Daniel Slater
Haire lll, Elisha Robinson, William Thomas Haire and Robert Washington as
contributors to this mixture

Slip — Aileen Davis

Slip — Josephine Davis




Item Tested
White Paper Bag : “The
Medicine Shop”

Results
Tested by Cellmark
Mixture profile obtained
Maijor profile within mixture is consistent with Josephine Davis
Aileen Davis cannot be excluded from the minor profile within the mixture
No male DNA profile obtained

Tape lift from floor of
living room (Print 1)

Tested by Cellmark

A partial male profile was obtained

Excludes Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Billy Ray Hales, Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray
Benton, Daniel Slater Haire lli, Elisha Robinson, William Thomas Haire and Robert
Washington

Tape lifts from floor of
living room (Prints 2/3)

Tested by Cellmark

A partial male profile was obtained

The profile is a possible mixture

Excludes Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Billy Ray Hales, Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray
Benton and Elisha Robinson

Due to the partial mixture profile and the possibility of allelic dropout, no determination
can be made regarding Daniel Slater Haire Ill, William Thomas Haire and Robert
Washington as contributors to this sample

Tape lift from floor of
living Room (Print 4)

Tested by Cellmark

A partial male profile was obtained

Excludes Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Billy Ray Hales, Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray
Benton, Daniel Slater Haire lll, Elisha Robinson, William Thomas Haire and Robert
Washington

Tape lift from “Zenith”
Radio (Print 12)

Tested by Cellmark

A partial male profile was obtained

Excludes Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Billy Ray Hales, Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray
Benton, Daniel Slater Haire llI, Elisha Robinson, William Thomas Haire and Robert
Washington

Tape lift from right side
bottom door of
refrigerator (Print 32)

Tested by Cellmark

A partial male profile was obtained

Excludes Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Billy Ray Hales, Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray
Benton, Daniel Slater Haire Ill, Elisha Robinson, William Thomas Haire and Robert
Washington

Tape lift from side of
refrigerator towards
door (Prints 40/40dup)

Tested by Cellmark

A partial male profile was obtained

Excludes Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Billy Ray Hales, Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray
Benton, Daniel Slater Haire 1ll, Elisha Robinson, William Thomas Haire and Robert
Washington

Hairs from Victim’s Body
(9 hairs total)

Two hairs tested at Cellmark

All nine hairs tested at Mitotyping

Seven hairs revealed the same profile

Two hairs revealed a mixture. Mixture is most likely due to degraded DNA. Underlying
profile within the mixture is the same profile being seen in the other seven hairs

All nine hairs Exclude Joseph Sledge, Herman Baker, Katherine Brown (maternal relative
of Victims), Samuel Smith, Johnny Ray Benton, Daniel Slater Haire Ill, Elisha Robinson,
William Thomas Haire, and Robert Washington

The mtDNA DNA profile seen in all nine hairs is recognizably African/African American




Item Tested Item Tested
Hairs from Sledge’s Testing conducted at Mitotyping

Pants Four hairs tested

(6 hairs total) One hair belongs to Sledge and excludes all other reference standards submitted

One hair is a cat hair

Two hairs revealed no DNA (human or animal)

Remaining two hairs were not tested because they were similar in color/type to the hair
determined to be a cat hair and the two hairs that revealed no DNA




TERRY MELTON

Mitotyping Technologies, a division of Al Biotech, LLC  Phone: (814) 861-0676
2565 Park Center Boulevard, Suite 200 Fax: 814 861 0576

State College, PA 16801 Email: twm107 @mitotyping.com

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

7/1/12-present Laboratory Director, Mitotyping Technologies, a division of Al Biotech, LLC

9/98-6/12

9/97-9/98

9/96-7/97

5/94-10/94

1/93-5/93

8/92-12/92

10/78-8/81

7/77-4/78

SERVICE
2007-present
2006-2010
2000-present

9/03-6/06

9/04-2/08

Founder/President, CEO, and Director, Mitotyping Technologies, LLC

Senior Research Assistant, Dept. of Anthropology, The Pennsylvania State
University

Visiting Postdoctoral Researcher, Cellular Genetics, Institute of Molecular
Medicine, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK

Research Assistant, Dept. of Anthropology, The Pennsylvania State University

Research Assistant, Intercollege Graduate Program in Genetics, The
Pennsylvania State University

Teaching Assistant, Introductory Biological Anthropology, The Pennsylvania
State University

Physician Assistant, Department of Pediatrics, University of Virginia Medical
Center

Physician Assistant, Blue Ridge General Practice, Lynchburg, VA

Reviewer, Office of Justice Programs (National Institute of Justice)
Member, Technical Working Group, DNA Forensics (National Institute of Justice)
Editorial Board, Journal of Forensic Sciences

Member, Working Group, Forensic DNA for Officers of the Court Project,
National Forensic Science Technology Center

Member, Advisory Council, National Clearinghouse for Science, Technology, and
the Law at Stetson University College of Law
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EDUCATION

8/91-3/96 PhD, Genetics, The Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA,
Adviser, Dr. Mark Stoneking, Department of Anthropology

1/89-8/91 MS, Genetics, The Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA, Adviser,
Dr. Robert B. Eckhardt, Department of Anthropology

8/75-8/77 Physician Assistant Program, Bowman Gray School of Medicine, Wake Forest
University, Winston-Salem, NC

8/72-8/77 BS, Wake Forest University, Winston-Salem, NC

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

American Academy of Forensic Sciences (Fellow)
American Association for the Advancement of Science
Sigma Xi Scientific Research Society

Society for Wildlife Forensic Science

International Society for Forensic Genetics

AWARDS

Vidocq Society Medal of Honor, October 24, 2010, Bensalem, PA, for work in the 1957 “Boulder
Jane Doe” identification case.

REVIEWER

Forensic Science International Genetics
Journal of Forensic Sciences

American Journal of Human Genetics
Forensic Science Reviews

Forensic Science Communications
Croatian Medical Journal

Genomics

Mitochondrion

BioMed Central
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PUBLICATIONS

Sykes BC, Mullis RA, Hagenmuller C, Melton TW, and Sartori M. (2014) Genetic analysis of hair

samples attributed to yeti, bigfoot and other anomalous primates. Proceedings of the Royal
Society B 281:20140161.

Owsley DW, Bruwelheide KS, Cashion Lugo MA, Melton T, and Spradley MK. (2014)
Identification of Ramon Power Y Giralt: Puerto Rico’s Diplomat to the 1812 Spanish
Constitutional Court. CENTRO Journal of the Center for Puerto Rican Studies (in press).

Melton, T. (2013) Digging deep: next generation sequencing for mitochondrial DNA forensics.
Forensic Magazine 10:12-14.

Salas A., Coble M., Desmyter S., Grzybowski T., Gusmagq L., Hohoff C., Holland M., Irwin J.,
Kupiec T., Lee H-Y., Ludes B., Lutz-Bonengel S., Melton T., Parsons T., Pfeiffer H., Prieto L.,
Tagliabracci A., Parson W. (2012) Letter to the Editor: A cautionary note on switching
mitochondrial DNA reference sequences in forensic genetics. Forensic Science International
Genetics 6(6)e182-4.

Melton T., Holland C., and Holland M. (2012) Forensic Mitochondrial DNA: Current Practice and
Future Potential. Forensic Science Review 24(2):110-122.

Melton T., Dimick G., Higgins B., Yon M., and Holland C. (2012) Mitochondrial DNA Analysis of
114 Hairs Measuring Less Than One Centimeter from a 19-Year-Old Homicide. Investigative
Genetics 3:12.

Melton, T. (2011) Easy species DNA identification for the forensic laboratory using 125
mitochondrial DNA. Forensic Magazine, July 2011.

Melton, T. and Isenberg, A. (2009) Comment on: Foran DR, Gehring ME, Stallworth SE. The
recovery and analysis of mitochondrial DNA from exploded pipe bombs. Journal of Forensic
Sciences 54:90-94.

Melton, T. (2009) Mitochondrial DNA examination of cold case crime scene hairs. Forensic
Magazine April 2009.

Melton, T. (2009) Mitochondrial DNA:Profiling, in: Wiley Encyclopedia of Forensic Science, Allan
Jamieson, A, Moenssens, A. (eds.), John Wiley and Sons, Ltd. Chichester, UK, pp.1833-1837.

Melton, T. and Holland, C. (2007) Routine Forensic Use of the Mitochondrial 12S Ribosomal RNA
Gene for Species Identification. Journal of Forensic Sciences 52:1305-1307.

Melton T. and Nelson, K. (2007) Forensic mitochondrial DNA analysis of 116 casework skeletal
samples. Journal of Forensic Sciences 52:557-562.

Terry Melton CV 10/14/2014 3



Melton, T., Holland, C.A., and Nelson, K. (2006) Comment on: Divne A-M, Nilsson M, Calloway C,
Reynolds R, Erlich H, Allen M. Forensic casework analysis using the HVI/HVII mtDNA linear array
assay. Journal of Forensic Sciences 50:548-554.

Owsley, D., Ellwood, B., and Melton, T. (2006) Search for the grave of William Preston Longley,
hanged Texas gunfighter. Historical Archaeology 40:50-63.

Melton, T. (2006) Mitochondrial DNA examination of cold case crime scene hairs. In Cold Case

Homicide Investigation, ed. Richard Walton, Geberth Practical Homicide Investigation Series,
Taylor and Francis, Boca Raton, FL.

Melton, T. and Weedn, V. (2005) Forensic DNA sequencing. In: Analytic Technigues of DNA
Sequencing, Brian Nunnally (ed.), Taylor and Francis, Boca Raton, FL.

Melton T., Dimick, G., Higgins, B., Lindstrom, L., and Nelson, K. (2005) Forensic mitochondrial
DNA casework experience on 691 hairs. Journal of Forensic Sciences 50:73-80.

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA heteroplasmy. (2004) Forensic Science Reviews 16:1-20. (FBI
invited paper).

Melton, T.(2003) Forensic mitochondrial DNA analysis. In: McGraw-Hill Annual Review of
Science and Technology. McGraw Hill, New York, p.140-143.

Melton, T. (2003) Mitochondrial DNA: Solving the mystery of Anna Anderson. D.W. Steadman
(ed.). In: Hard Evidence: Case studies in forensic anthropology, Prentice Hall, Upper Saddle
River, New Jersey, p. 205-211.

Melton, T. and Nelson, K. (2001) Forensic mitochondrial DNA analysis: two years of
commercial casework experience in the United States. Croatian Medical Journal 42:298-303.

Melton, T., Clifford, S., Kaiser, M., Nasidze, I., and Stoneking, M. (2001) Diversity and
heterogeneity of mtDNA in North American populations. Journal of Forensic Sciences 46:46-52.

Melton, T. and Sensabaugh, G. (2000) Mitochondrial Deoxyribonucleic Acid. In: Encyclopedia of
Forensic Science, Academic Press Limited, London.

Melton, T. and Stoneking, M. (1999) SSO-probe hybridization analysis of mtDNA. In
Mitochondrial DNA analysis in forensic science, A. Sajantila (ed.).

Melton, T., Batzer, M., Clifford, S., Martinson, J., and Stoneking, M. (1998) Evidence for the
proto-Austronesian homeland in Asia: mitochondrial and nuclear DNA variation in Taiwanese
aboriginal tribes. American Journal of Human Genetics 63:1807-1823.

Melton, T., Ginther, C., Sensabaugh, G., Soodyall, H., and Stoneking, M. (1997) The extent of
heterogeneity in mitochondrial DNA of sub-Saharan African populations. Journal of Forensic
Sciences 42:580-590
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Melton, T., Wilson, M., Batzer, M., and Stoneking, M. (1997) Extent of heterogeneity in
_mitochondrial DNA of European populations. Journal of Forensic Sciences 42:437-446

Melton, T. and Stoneking, M. (1996) The extent of heterogeneity in mitochondrial DNA of
ethnic Asian populations. Journal of Forensic Sciences 41:587-598

Melton, T. (1996) The influence of mitochondrial DNA variation on forensic DNA typing. PhD
thesis, The Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA

Melton, T., Peterson, R., Redd, A., Saha, N., Sofro, A.S.M., Martinson, J., and Stoneking, M.
(1995) Polynesian genetic affinities with Southeast Asian populations as identified by
mitochondrial DNA analysis. American Journal of Human Genetics 57:403-414

Gill, P., Kimpton, C., Aliston-Greiner, R., and Sullivan, K., Stoneking, M., Melton, T., Nott, J.,
Barritt, S., Roby, R., Holland, M., Weedn, V. (1995) Establishing the identity of Anna Anderson
Manahan. Nature Genetics 9: 9-10

Eckhardt, R. B. and Melton, T. W., eds. (1992) Population Studies on Human Adaptation and
Evolution in the Peruvian Andes, Number 14, Occasional Papers in Anthropology, Matson
Museum of Anthropology, The Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA., 268 pages

Melton, T. W. (1991) Comparison of Growth and Development in Two Peruvian Populations of
High Altitude Ancestry. MS thesis, The Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA

Wilson, T. A., Melton, T. W., and Clarke, W. L. (1983) The effect of fenfluramine and caloric
restriction on carbohydrate homeostasis in patients with lipodystrophy. Diabetes Care 6:160

Clarke, W. L., Melton, T. W., and Bright, G. M. (1983). The effect of hyperglucagonemia on blood
glucose concentrations and on insulin requirements during fasting in insulin dependent diabetes
mellitus. Acta Endocrinologica 102: 557

Clarke, W., Melton, T., Sachse, M., Schneider, J., Schneider, K., and Yarbrough, M. (1980).
Evaluation of a new reflectance photometer for use in home blood glucose monitoring.

Diabetes Care 4: 547

Bright, G., Melton, T., Rogol, A., and Clarke, W. (1980). Failure of cortisol to inhibit early

morning increases in basal insulin requirements in fasting insulin-dependent diabetics. Diabetes
29: 680

PRESENTATIONS

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA Toolkit for Lawyers. Arkansas Association of Criminal Defense
Lawyers, Little Rock, AR, June 5-7, 2014 (invited).
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Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA: A Highly Useful Tool, National Association of Criminal Defense
Lawyers, Making Sense of Science VII, Las Vegas, NV, May 15-18, 2014.

Melton, T. Microscopical and DNA Examination of Very Small Crime Scene Hairs: Possibilities

and Challenges (with Amy Michaud, ATF), The Evidence Conference, Washington DC, October 2,
2012.

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA 101 and 102. Actual Innocence Program, Center for American
and International Law, Plano, TX, February 11, 2012 (invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA Forensics for the Legal Practitioner: Critical Knowledge from
Crime Scene to Courtroom. American Academy of Forensic Science Annual Meeting, Chicago,
February 21-26, 2011 (invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA Workshop: |. Hairs and Skeletal Remains, Il. Heteroplasmy, Ill.
Species Identification, IV. Population Statistics. Philadelphia Crime Laboratory, Philadelphia, PA,
December 6, 2010 (invited, 4 hours teaching).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA Mixture Interpretation. 21 International Symposium on Human
Identification, San Antonio, TX, October 14, 2010 (invited).

Melton, T., Sikora, J., Fernandes, V., and Pereira, L. FidoTyping and FidoSearch: Validation of a
forensic canine mitochondrial DNA protocol and a new on-line canid mitochondrial
hypervariable region database. American Academy of Forensic Science Annual Meeting,
Washington, DC, February 22-27, 2010

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA: Updates and Challenges. Pennsylvania Bar Institute,
Philadelphia, PA, September 11. 2008 (invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA: Updates and Challenges. Office of Forensic Services, New York
Division of Criminal Justice Services, Albany, NY, June 18, 2008 (invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA Workshop: . Heteroplasmy, Il. Population Statistics.

Pennsylvania State University, Forensic Science Program, State College, PA, Nov. 1, 2007
(invited, 4 hours teaching).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA workshop: I. Hairs and Skeletal Remains, Il. Heteroplasmy, Ill.
Species ldentification, IV. Population Statistics. California Department of Justice, Richmond, CA,
April 30, 2007. (invited; 8 hours teaching)

Melton, T. Easy breezy species ID for the forensic lab using a method that works for even the
most challenging samples. Forensic e-Symposium, April 24, 2007, sponsored by The Forensic
Institute, Glasgow, Scotland (invited).

Melton, T. What investigators need to know about mitochondrial DNA analysis. Pennsylvania

Association of Licensed Investigators conference, State College, PA, September 28, 2006
(invited).
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Melton, T. What criminal attorneys need to know about mitochondrial DNA analysis.
Pennsylvania Bar Institute, Harrisburg, PA, June 8-9, 2006 (invited).

Melton, T. What homicide investigators need to know about mitochondrial DNA. Pennsylvania
Homicide Investigators Annual Conference, State College, PA, April 26, 2006 (invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA Screening: Issues and Alternatives. American Academy of
Forensic Science Annual Meeting, Seattle, February 21-25, 2006.

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA: How the smallest genome helps exonerate and convict.
Pennsylvania Homicide Investigators Annual Conference, State College, PA, June 22, 2005
(invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA and hair analysis. DePaul College of Law Forensic Hair
Conference, Chicago, March 18, 2005 (invited).

Melton, T. A human mitochondrial DNA database derived from casework at Mitotyping

Technologies. American Academy of Forensic Science Annual Meeting, New Orleans, February
21-26, 2005.

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA: How the smallest genome helps exonerate and convict.
California Association of Criminal Justice/California Defense Attorneys Association Annual
Meeting, Monterey, California, February 19-21, 2005 (invited).

Melton, T. By a hair: How the smallest genome helps convict and exonerate. Henry Lee
Institute: Cracking Cold Cases, Foxwoods Casino, April 5, 2004 (invited).

Melton, T. Forensic mitochondrial DNA analysis. Seminar for Central Identification Laboratory-
Hawaii, Hickam Air Force Base, Oahu, February 9, 2004 (invited).

Melton, T. Casework experience: Reaching 600+ hairs. Forensic Human Mitochondrial DNA

Workshop, American Academy of Forensic Science Annual Meeting, Dallas, February 16-21,
2004 (FBI invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA Forensic Analysis: How the Smallest Genome Convicts and
Exonerates. 2003 Benedum Lecture Series, West Virginia University, October 16, 2003 (invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA typing. DNA Seminar, Ontario Provincial Police, Collingwood,
Ontario, September 8-13, 2003 (invited).

Melton, T. Human hair mtDNA analysis: success, size, and site heteroplasmy. The Third
European-American School in Forensic Genetics and Mayo Clinic Course in Advanced Molecular
and Cellular Medicine September 1-5, 2003, Zagreb, Croatia (invited).
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Melton, T. Scientific developments and future applications of mitochondrial DNA analysis.
Pennsylvania Supreme Court DNA Programs, State College, PA, March 19, 2003, and Plymouth
Meeting, PA, March 26, 2003 (invited).

Melton, T. Hair. Panel Discussion, National Conference on Science and the Law, U.S.
Department of Justice, Miami, FL, October 3-5, 2002 (invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA typing. DNA Seminar, Ontario Provincial Police, Muskoka Sands,
Ontario, September 8-13, 2002 (invited).

Melton, T. Ancient mtDNA analysis in forensic casework. Human Forensic Mitochondrial DNA
Analysis Workshop, American Academy of Forensic Sciences Annual Meeting, Atlanta, GA,
February 11, 2001 (invited).

Melton, T. Scientific developments and future expectation in mtDNA analysis. DNA
Conference, Institute of Forensic Science and the Law, Duquesne University, November 30-
December 1, 2001 (invited).

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA typing. DNA Seminar, Florida Prosecuting Attorneys Association,
Altamonte Springs, FL, August 23-24, 2001 (invited).

Melton, T. Forensic mitochondrial DNA analysis: two years of commercial casework experience
in the United States. Second European-American Intensive Course in PCR-Based Clinical and
Forensic Testing, September 3-14, 2001, Dubrovnik, Croatia (invited).

Melton, T. Working the toughest mitochondrial DNA case in the world: getting good data out of
difficult evidence. American Academy of Forensic Sciences, February 19-24, 2001, Seattle, WA.

Melton, T. What mitochondrial DNA analysis can and cannot do in parentage testing. Eleventh
International Symposium on Human Identification, October 10-13, 2000, Biloxi, Ml (invited).

Melton, T. Diversity and heterogeneity in mitochondrial DNA of North American populations.
Cambridge Healthtech Institute’s Fourth Annual DNA Forensics, May 31-June 2, 2000,
Springfield, VA (invited).

Melton, T. Forensic mitochondrial DNA analysis: 2000 status. Fifth Annual Conference of the
Future of DNA: Implications for the Criminal Justice System, May 8-9, 2000, New York (invited).

Melton, T. and Nelson, K. Beyond simple substitutions: Length variation and heteroplasmy in

mtDNA forensic casework. American Academy of Forensic Sciences, February 21-26, 2000,
Reno, NV.

Melton, T. Subpopulation heterogeneity in mtDNA variation. First International Conference on
Forensic Human ldentification in the Millenium, Mitochondrial Analysis Workshop, October 27-
28, 1999, London (invited)
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Melton, T. Forensic use of mitochondrial DNA 1998. California Association of Criminalists DNA
Workshop, October 14, 1998, San Diego, CA (invited)

Melton, T. Forensic use of mitochondrial DNA 1998. IBC’s International Conference on DNA
Forensic Analysis, July 30-31, 1998, Annapolis, MD (invited)

Melton, T. Forensic use of mitochondrial DNA 1998. The Annual Conference on Criminal Justice
Research and Evaluation: Viewing Crime and Justice from a Collaborative Perspective, July 26-
29, 1998, Washington, D.C. (invited)

Melton, T. Forensic use of mitochondrial DNA 1998. Third Annual Conference on the Future of
DNA: Implications for the Criminal Justice System, May 21-22, 1998, Chicago, IL (invited)

Melton, T., Martinson, J., and Stoneking, M. Mitochondrial DNA variation in aboriginal peoples
of Taiwan and comparison with Southeast Asian populations, Cultural and Genetic Affinities of
Indigenous Peoples of Taiwan, Academia Sinica, May 21-23, 1996, Taipei, Taiwan, ROC (invited)

Melton, T., Ginther, C., Wilson, M., and Stoneking, M. The extent of subpopulation
heterogeneity in mitochondrial DNA types of African and European populations. American
Academy of Forensic Sciences, February 19-24, 1996, Nashville, TN

Melton, T. Mitochondrial DNA variation in the Mukogodo. American Anthropological
Association, November 15-19, 1995, Washington, DC

Melton, T. and Stoneking, M. Subpopulation heterogeneity in mitochondrial DNA evaluated
with analysis of molecular variance of sequence-specific oligonucleotide typing of worldwide

populations. Sixth International Symposium on Human Identification, October 12-14, 1995,
Scottsdale, AZ

Melton, T., Martinson, J., Saha, Sofro A., N., and Stoneking, M. The extent of subpopulation
heterogeneity in mitochondrial DNA types in ethnic Asian populations. American Academy of
Forensic Sciences, February 14-18, 1995, Seattle, WA

Melton, T. Subpopulation heterogeneity in mitochondrial DNA for ethnic Asian populations.
Technical Working Group on DNA Analysis Methods, July 26, 1993, and July 25, 1994, FBI
Academy, Quantico, VA

ABSTRACTS/POSTERS

- Danielson, P.B., Kristinsson, R., and Melton, T. (2006) Forensic mtDNA mixture fractionation by
denaturing high-performance liquid chromatography. 85" Annual Meeting of the German
Society of Legal Medicine-DNA in Forensics 2006, September 27-29, 2006. Innsbruck, Austria.

~ (Abstract)
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Melton, T., Nelson K., Sturk, K., and Irwin, J. (2006) Base-numbering challenges of
insertion/deletion variation in the human mitochondrial DNA control region and relevance to
database searches. 85" Annual Meeting of the German Society of Legal Medicine-DNA in
Forensics 2006, September 27-29, 2006. Innsbruck, Austria. (Abstract)

Nelson, K. and Melton, T. (2005) Forensic mitochondrial DNA analysis of 116 casework skeletal
samples. Sixteenth International Symposium on Human Identification, October 26-29, 2005,
Grapevine, TX. (Abstract)

Nelson, K and Melton, T. (2004) High diversity in mtDNA from casework samples at Mitotyping
Technologies. Southwest Association of Forensic Scientists, October 11-15, 2004, Oklahoma
City, OK. (Abstract)

Nelson, K. and Melton, T. (2000) The case of degraded mtDNA: mtDNA ancient analysis to the
rescue. Eleventh International Symposium on Human Identification, October 10-13, 2000,
Biloxi, MS. (Poster)

Nelson, K. and Melton, T. (1999) Forensic applications of human mitochondrial DNA variation.
Symposium on Diversity and Evolution, American Genetic Association, June 12-13, 1999, State
College, PA. (Poster)

Melton, T. and Nelson, K. (1999) Diversity of casework, heteroplasmy, and population
variation: mtDNA analysis in the private sector. First International Conference and Exhibition on
Forensic Human Identification, The Forensic Science Service, October 24-26, 1999, London.
(Poster)

Nelson, K. and Melton, T. (1999) Mitochondrial DNA testing: casework in the private sector,
heteroplasmy, and genetic diversity within the United States. Tenth International Symposium
on Human ldentification, September 29-October 2, 1999, Orlando, FL (Poster)

Nelson, K. and Melton, T. (1999) Forensic applications of human mitochondrial DNA variation.
Symposium on Human Diversity and Evolution, American Genetic Association, June 11-13, 1999
State College, PA (Poster)

Melton, T., Clifford, S., Stoneking, M., (1998) Variation and geographic subpopulation
heterogeneity in the mitochondrial DNA control region of North Americans. American Academy
of Forensic Sciences, February 9-14, San Francisco, CA (Abstract)

Stoneking, M., and Melton, T. (1996) Forensic applications of mitochondrial DNA analysis.
Cambridge Symposium on DNA Forensics, April 21-27, Santa Fe, NM (Abstract)

Melton, T., Peterson, R., Redd, A., Sofro, A., Soodyall, H., and Stoneking, M. (1994) Polynesian
origins: The mitochondrial DNA 9-bp deletion marker and associated control region haplotypes
in southeast Asian populations. Society for Molecular Biology and Evolution, June 15-19, 1994,
Athens, GA. (Poster) '
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Kumar, S. and Melton, T. Phylogenetic trees from molecular data: construction and
applications. Graduate Research Exhibition, The Pennsylvania State University, March 20-21,
1992, University Park, PA (Poster)

Melton, T.W., and Eckhardt, R.B., Thoracic development at high and low altitude provides
confirmatory evidence for the existence of genetic factors influencing adaptation to high
altitude in South America. Human Biology Council, April 2-6, 1991, Milwaukee, WI. (Poster)

Melton, T. Genetic adaptation in the Andes. Graduate Research Exhibition, The Pennsylvania
State University, March 22-23, 1991, University Park, PA (Poster)

Clarke, W., Melton, T., Sachse, M., Schneider, J., Schneider M., and Yarbrough, M. (1981)
Evaluation of a new reflectance photometer for use in home blood glucose monitoring.
Diabetes 30 (Suppl. 1): 92 (Abstract)

Wilson, T., Melton, T., and Clarke, W. (1980) The effect of fenfluramine on glucose homeostasis
in lipodystrophy. Diabetes 29 (Suppl. 2): 498 (Abstract)

Bright, G., Melton, T., Rogol, A., and Clarke, W. (1980) The effect of exogenous human growth
hormone on blood glucose concentrations and insulin requirements during closed-loop
(Biostator R-GCIIS) control of diabetes mellitus. Diabetes 29 (Suppl. 2): 483 (Abstract)

Clarke, W., White, N., Melton, T., and Santiago, J. (1979). Diurnal variation in closed-loop insulin
requirements in fasting insulin dependent diabetics: probable role of the adrenal pituitary axis.
Workshop on Artificial Beta Cell, Budapest-Heviz, Hungary (Abstract)

TRIAL AND TESTIMONY EXPERIENCE (ALL MITOCHONDRIAL DNA)

11/97 Frye hearing: Washington v. Dennis Keith Smith
3/98 Frye hearing: Washington v. Dennis Keith Smith
5/98  Trial: Washington v. Dennis Keith Smith

5/98 Frye hearing: Florida v. James Edward Crow
11/98 Frye hearing: Michigan v. Kevin Holtzer

5/99  Frye hearing: Michigan v. Kevin Holtzer

10/99 Trial: Michigan v. Kevin Holtzer

11/99 Hearing: North Carolina v. Robin Martin [Def.]
1/00 Trial: Kansas v. John Taylor [Def.]

1/00  Frye hearing: U.S. v. Noah Beverly

1/00 Trial: U.S. v. Noah Beverly

2/00  Trial: U.S. v. Noah Beverly (rebuttal)

6/00 Frye hearing: New York v. Raymond Klinger
8/00 Trial: lowa v. Monte Seager

3/01 Trial: South Carolina v. Wesley Myers

4/01 Frye hearing: Colorado v. Cong Van Than
5/01 Trial: lowa v. Donald Piper
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10/01
12/01
12/01

1/02
2/02
2/02
2/02
2/02
4/02
5/02
6/02
7/02
8/02

8/02
8/02
8/02
10/02
10/02
11/02
1/03
4/03
4/03
4/03

7/03
9/03
9/03
1/04
3/04
3/04
4/04
5/04
7/04
7/04

7/04
8/04
1/05
1/05
3/05:
6/05
6/05
8/05
9/05
10/05

Frye hearing: lllinois v. Cecil Sutherland
Frye hearing, Trial: Florida v. Jeremy Alan Smith
Trial: Colorado v. Juan Sierra-Omini

Trial: lowa v. Donald Piper

Frye hearing: Missouri v. Kenneth Coleman

Trial: Missouriv. Kenneth Coleman

Frye hearing: Minnesota v. Harold Zanter

Trial: New York v. Ali Bessaha

Trial: Washington v. Scott Fischer

Trial: Connecticut v. Michael Skakel

Trial: lowa v. Donald Piper

Grand Jury: Queens, New York (Samiya Hagiqi homicide)
Trial: Colorado v. Michael Joe Muniz (by telephone)

Deposition: Utah: Johnson v. Harris (civil)

Trial: Washington v. Robert L. Yates, Jr.

Trial: Michigan v. Tom Roberts

Trial: Kansas v. Jonathan Carr and Reginald Carr
Trial: New York v. Kelvin Mahoney

Trial: California v. Hugo Alcazar

Hearing: Connecticut v. Mark Reid [Def.]

Trial: Michigan v. Tony Berry

Trial: Washington v. Brian Keith Lord

Trial: New Mexico v. Roy Foote

Trial: Michigan v. Garron Leon Mason

Trial: Florida v. Carl Simmons

Hearing (CA): Redding Rancheria Native Council/Foreman family matter (civil)
Trial: Tennessee v. Pat Bondurant '

Hearing: New York v. Kelvin Mahoney

Trial: New York v. Louis Telese

Trial: Tennessee v. Sabrina Lewis

Trial: Illinois v. Cecil Sutherland

Hearing: Delaware v. John Woods

Frye hearing: U.S. v. Ida Chase

Frye hearing: New Jersey v. Porfirio Jiminez

Hearing: Paul v. Good (civil matter, Waycross, Georgia)
Trial: lllinois v. Billy Lee Warren

Hearing: Georgia v. Robert Vaughn

Trial: U.S. v. Henry Tobias

Trial: U.S. Robert Smith

Trial: Florida v. Charles Peterson

Trial: Georgia v. Robert Vaughn

Trial: New York v. Jude Byron

Trial: New York v. John Kogut
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2/06
3/06
3/06
4/06
6/06
7/06
9/06
9/06
11/06
2/07

5/07
5/07
6/07
7/07
9/07
9/07
10/07
11/07
12/07
3/08

3/08
3/08
3/08
6/08
6/08
8/08
10/08
11/08
2/09
2/09

2/09
5/09
5/09
10/09
1/10
5/10
5/10
6/10
8/10
11/10

10/10
1/11

Trial: Washington v. Brian Frawley

Trial: Pennsylvania v. Hugo Selenski

Trial: New York v. John Popal

Trial: New Jersey v. Daniel Gatson

Trial: Indiana v. Jenny Gibbs

Trial: New York v. Christopher Porco

Frye Hearing: New Hampshire v. Collanzo
Trial: New Jersey v. Sterling

Trial: Pennsylvania v. Davis

Hearing: Norfolk Island v. Glenn McNeil

Rimmasch Hearing: Utah v. Glen Howard Griffin
Trial: Pennsylvania v. Brian Catalano

Trial: New York v. Christopher Gifford

Trial: New Jersey v. Gerald Daniels

Trial: Pennsylvania v. Vincent Cascardo

Trial: Pennyslvania v. William Rohland

Trial: New Hampshire v. Kenneth Carpenter
Trial: Regina v. Clare Spiers

Trial: Florida v. Aurelio Ibarra

Trial: Florida v. William Hodges

Hearing: California v. Ray Dell Sims

Trial: Florida v. Bryan Curry

Hearing: Diaz v. Guthrie (civil)

Trial: New York v. David Sanchez

Trial: Florida v. Brett Bogle

Trial: Pennsylvania v. Emerson Macauley
Trial: New Jersey v. Porfirio Jiminez
Trial: Utah v. Glen Howard Griffin
Hearing: Pennsylvania v. David Chmiel
Trial: Michigan v. Walter Hardeman

Trial: Kansas v. Justin Thurber

Hearing: Pennsylvania v. John Minch

Trial: Pennsylvania v. Sylvester Nelms

Trial: Michigan v. Walter Hardeman

Trial: U.S. v. Stephen Harrison

Trial: Maryland v. Charles Brandon Martin
Hearing: Connecticut v. Richard LaPointe [Def.]
Trial: Utah v. Wade Garrett Maughn

Trial: Pennsylvania v. Jeffrey Plishka

Trial: Texas v. Kenneth Hernandez

Frye Hearing: California v. Marcus Oliver
Trial: Colorado v. Alejandro Perez
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4/11
6/11
8/11
11/11
12/11
7/12
8/12
9/12

10/12
11/12
3/13
9/13
10/13
11/13
4/14

Trial:
Trial:
Trial:
Trial:
Trial:
Trial:
Trial:

California v. Alejandro Villa

Wisconsin v. Chad Lurvey [canine mtDNA]
Michigan v. David Easley

California v. Marcus Oliver

lowa v. Ricky Putman

Pennsylvania v. Gary Gerber [Def.]
Florida v. Raydel Alvarez [Def.]

Hearing: Pennsylvania v. John Minch

Trial: Florida v. Michael Rivera

Trial: Michigan v. Jeffrey Pyne

Trial: Texas v. Mark Alan Norwood

Hearing: Florida v. Adam Lloyd Shepard

Civil Trial: Bradford Construction v. Jim Centeno
Trial: Pennsylvania v. John Minch

Trial: Florida v. Alan Shepherd
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Curriculum Vitae

Meghan E. Clement, MS, F-ABC

Education

1985 Master of Science, Forensic Science
University of New Haven, West Haven, Connecticut
Honors: Graduate Fellow, 1984

1983 Bachelor of Science, Biology

Westfield State College, Westfield, Massachusetts
Graduated Cum Laude

Professional Experience

SENIOR DIRECTOR July 2012- Present
Cellmark Forensics, LabCorp Specialty Testing Group
Dallas, TX

Responsibilities: Manage the daily responsibilities of laboratory personnel
and flow of both contract and independent casework, manage implementation
of new tests, participate in analysis of casework and interpretation of results
of STR, Y-STR and mtDNA analysis, perform technical reviews and
administrative reviews, provide expert testimony, participate in marketing
and sales functions.

TECHNICAL DIRECTOR, FORENSIC IDENTITY May 2000- July 2012
Laboratory Corporation of America
Research Triangle Park, North Carolina

Responsibilities: Manage the daily responsibilities of laboratory personnel
and flow of casework, as well as implementation of new tests, participate in
analysis of casework and interpret results of DNA analysis, prepare reports,
provide expert testimony, direct and coordinate marketing and sales
functions.

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR, FORENSIC IDENTITY Aug. 1998- May 2000
Laboratory Corporation of America
Research Triangle Park, North Carolina
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Responsibilities: Direct and participate in the DNA analysis of samples
submitted to the laboratory, prepare reports of results and provide expert
testimony, supervise and direct laboratory technologists and lab clerk
positions, direct and coordinate marketing and sales functions.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, FORENSIC IDENTITY Nov. 1994- Aug. 1998
Laboratory Corporation of America (formerly Roche Biomedical Laboratories)
Research Triangle Park, North Carolina

Responsibilities: Conduct forensic DNA analysis on biological samples using
both RFLP and PCR techniques, oversee and direct the laboratory
technologists in the production of forensic DNA casework, prepare reports of
results and provide expert testimony, assist in laboratory operations to
ensure timely handling of cases and QA/QC measures, assist in the
marketing and sales aspects of the Forensic Identity department.

FORENSIC BIOLOGIST March 1991 - Nov. 1994
Tarrant County Medical Examiner's Office
Fort Worth, Texas

Responsibilities: Forensic analysis of biological samples using traditional
serological techniques as well as RFLP DNA profiling, conduct research and
validation of new techniques in the forensic biology field, provide expert
testimony, provide training to officer's in various law enforcement agencies
concerning the collection and preservation of evidence, crime scene
investigation.

SENIOR CRIMINALIST March 1985 - March 1991
City of Albuquerque, Police Department, Criminalistics
Albuquerque, New Mexico

Responsibilities: Assisted in implementing a DNA section including setting
up quality control measures and population data bases, as well as performing
validation studies, traditional serological analysis, blood/breath alcohol
concentration analysis, provide expert testimony, crime scene investigation,
train new personnel, officers and detectives.

TEACHING ASSISTANT, FORENSIC SCIENCE Sept. 1984- Mar. 1985
University of New Haven, West Haven, Connecticut

Responsibilities: Assist in teaching serological techniques to graduate
students in the Criminalistics laboratories, assist in research projects being
conducted.

TEACHING ASSISTANT, BIOLOGY Sept. 1983 - Sept. 1984
University of New Haven, West Haven, Connecticut
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Responsibilities: Set up and assist in teaching various biology laboratories to
undergraduate students.

FORENSIC SCIENCE INTERNSHIP August 1984
New Mexico State Police Crime Laboratory,
Santa Fe, New Mexico

Observed and participated in case analysis under the supervision of New
Mexico State Police forensic analysts in the serology, trace, drugs and
firearms sections.

Affiliations

American Academy of Forensic Sciences, Member
Southwestern Association of Forensic Scientists, Member

Appointed to the Technical Advisory Committee of the American Society of Crime
Laboratory Directors-Laboratory Accreditation Board (ASCLD/LAB) —QOctober 2014

Expert Testimony and Depositions

Testified 350+ times in 32 states

Testified in local, state, military and federal courts

Forensic Laboratory Experience Qualified
e RFLP 1989

e PCR Analysis and Interpretation 1990

e DQ Alpha + Polymarker Testing 1995

e Paternity Testing 1995

e Mitochondrial DNA Analysis 1997

e Commercial Kit STR Analysis 2002

e Y-STR Analysis 2003
Certifications

Molecular Biology Fellow - American Board of Criminalistics (ABC)

Publications and Oral Presentations

Budowle, B., Monson, K., Anoe, K.S., Baechtel, S., Bergman, D.L., Buel, E,,
Campbell, P.A., Clement, M.E. et al (1991) A Preliminary Report on Binned
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General Population Data on Six VNTR Loci in Caucasians, Blacks and
Hispanics from the United States. Crime Lab Digest 18:9-26.

Validation of Multiplex STR Profiling Systems for Forensic Casework
Specimens
American Academy of Forensic Sciences, Feb. 1998

Developing a DNA Laboratory on a Shoestring Budget
Southwestern Association of Forensic Scientists, Spring Meeting 1991

Continuing Education

Sept 2014

Feb 2014
Oct 2013
Feb 2013
June 2012
Feb 2012

Oct 2011

Nov 2011
Feb 2010

Aug 2009

Ape 2009
Feb 2009
July 2008
Feb 2007
Aug 2006

May 2006

Curriculum Vitae

Emerging Forensic Genomic Applications-Genome ID Forum,
Greenville, NC

AAFS Annual Meeting, Seattle, WA

International Symposium on Human Identification, Atlanta, GA
AAFS Annual Meeting, Washington, DC

2012 NIJ Meeting, Arlington, VA

AAFS Annual Meeting, Atlanta, GA

Mixture Interpretation Workshop-Promega International Symposium on
Human Identification, National Harbor, DC

CODIS Meeting, Jasonville, FL
AAFS Annual Meeting, Seattle, WA

HID Future Trends in DNA Technology, Applied Biosystems,
Richmond, VA

FBI DNA Auditor’s Refresher Training, Raleigh, NC
AAFS Annual Meeting, Denver, CO

NIJ Meeting, Arlington, VA

AAFS Annual Meeting, San Antonio, TX

AFDAA Summer Meeting, Austin, TX

ABI Human Identity University, Research Triangle Park, NC
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Feb 2006 AAFS Annual Meeting, Seattle, WA
Jun 2005 6"t Annual DNA Grantees Workshop, Arlington, VA
Apr 2004 FBI DNA Auditor’s Training, Quantico, VA

Feb 2004 AAFS Annual Meeting, Dallas, TX
Forensic Human mtDNA Analysis Workshop

Oct 2003 International Symposium on Human Identification, Phoenix, AZ
Making Sense of Popstats Workshop

Apr 2003 ASCLD/LAB-Laboratory Inspector Training Course, Raleigh, NC

Feb 2003 AAFS Annual Meeting, Chicago, IL
Low Copy Number DNA Analysis Workshop

Jun 2002 DNA Grantees Workshop, Arlington, VA

Oct 2001 7" Annual CODIS User’s Conference, Arlington, VA
Feb 2001 AAFS Annual Meeting, Seattle, WA

Feb 2000 AAFS Annual Meeting, Reno, NV

Oct 1999 NIJ Meeting, Arlington, VA

Apr 1998 Mitochondrial DNA Analysis and Data Basing, presented by Mark
Wilson and Clint Stauffer

Feb 1998 AAFS Annual Meeting, San Francisco, CA
Sept 1997 International Symposium on Human Identg'ﬁcation, Phoenix, AZ
Feb 1997 AAFS Annual Meeting, NYC,NY

Oct 1996 English Speaking Working Group International Society for Forensic
Haemogenetics

Sept 1996 International Symposium on Human Identification, Phoenix, AZ

Specialized Schools and Training

Dec 2011 ASCLD/LAB TECHNICAL ASSESSOR REFRESHER TRAINING
(June 2011 revision-on line training)
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Apr 2009

Jan 2006

Apr 2004
Apr 2003

Mar 1995

June 1991

DNA AUDITOR REFRESHER TRAINING, Presented by the FBI,
Research Triangle Park, NC

ASCLD/LAB-International ASSESSOR TRAINING COURSE,
Houston, TX

DNA AUDITOR TRAINING, FBI Academy, Quantico, VA
ASCLD-LAB INSPECTOR TRAINING, Raleigh, NC

FORENSIC AMPLITYPE PM + HLA DQA1 PCR WORKSHOP,
Perkin-Elmer Training Dept., Foster City, CA

ADVANCED FORENSIC DNA TYPING SCHOOL, FBI Academy,
Quantico, Virginia

Mar-Junl990 VISITING SCIENTIST PROGRAM, FBI Academy, Quantico,

Dec 1989

Fall 1988

May 1998

Curriculum Vitae

Virginia

Assisted in numerous DNA research projects being conducted by the
FBI Research and Training Center including data base compilation,
ethidium bromide use in DNA analysis, quantitation of human DNA
using slot blot techniques, effect of glycerol concentration on DNA,
studies on possible ladders for amplified RFLP's (Amp-FLP's), and
population data base compilation of Amp-Flp MCT118.

FORENSIC APPLICATIONS OF DNA TYPING, FBI Academy,
Quantico, Virginia

MOLECULAR GENETICS AND FORENSIC SCIENCE, University
of New Mexico, Albuquerque, New Mexico

DNA POLYMORPHISM AND DNA TYPING
COURSE/WORKSHOP, University of New Haven, West Haven,

Connecticut ,

Meghan E. Clement, MS
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COLUMBUS COUNTY

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

JOSEPH SLEDGE, JR.,

v. AFFIDAVIT

Defendant,.

NOW COMES the Affiant, Reuben L. Moore, Jr., who attests to the following:

1.

My name is Reuben L. Moore. I was licensed to practice law in the State of North
Carolina in 1965. I am currently retired and my North Carolina State Bar license is
inactive.

I am under no disability, or undue, or improper influence of any kind.

. I'am giving this affidavit of my own free will and understanding. No one has promised

me anything or pressured me in any way to sign this affidavit.

In 1978, I represented Joseph Sledge, Jr., the defendant in the above-captioned case. I
represented Mr. Sledge in both of his trials for the murders of Josephine and Aileen
Davis. I also represented Mr. Sledge for his direct appeal.

Mr. Sledge always maintained his innocence in this case, including during discussions
with me where his statements were protected by attorney-client privilege.

Christine Mumma, Mr. Sledge’s current attorney, has shown me some of the discovery
relating to this case that was recently provided to her. The exculpatory evidence included
in that discovery was never provided to me by the State prior to Mr. Sledge’s trial.

Had the exculpatory information been provided to me by the State, my trial strategy
would have included challenges to the physical evidence found at the crime scene that did
not match my client. This includes the shoe tread prints found in blood in the home and
in the dirt outside the home that were consistent with each other and with the shoes of an
African-American man who lived nearby, but not with Mr. Sledge’s shoes; bloody palm
prints recovered from either side of the head of one of the victims that did not match Mr.
Sledge; evidence that the perpetrator was right-handed, which Mr. Sledge is not; and a
description of the blood in the home that could have been used to challenge the time of
death. :

. Additionally, had I been provided with Donnie Sutton’s pre-trial interviews with law

enforcement, I would have used those statements to impeach him on the stand.



9. It is my strong belief that had this information been available to me in
1978, the outcome of Mr. Sledge’s second trial would have been different.

10.  To the best of my knowledge and belief; all of the information included in
this affidavit is true, complete, and is made in good faith.

11.  Ifcalled to testify at a hearing in this matter, my testimony will be
consistent with the above statements.

Further, Affiant says not.

This the 2§ day of_ Pete b 2015,
b L Mrne
inactive ‘

STATE OF NO CAROLINA
COUNTY OF

Sworn to and subscribed before me this the 2Y_dayof_ Oct e 2013,

Reuben L. Moore, Jr.
N.C. State Bar No. 3091,

(- Aeng

NOTARY PUBLIC v
My Commission Expires: 9~ 13- 201§

CAROLE W. LONG
NOTARY PUBLIC
Brunswick County

North Carolina
My Commission Explres_&~13- 2018




NCCAa!l North Carolina Center on Actual Innocence
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P.O. Box 52446 Shannon Plaza Station, Durham, NC 27717-2446
admin@nccai.org (919) 489-3268 (Phone) (919) 489-3285 (Fax)

March 26, 2012

Mr. Joseph Sledge, #0372992
Nash Correctional

P.O. Box 600

Nashville, NC 27856

Dear Joseph,

I hope you are well. Thank you for your many letters that remind me of the many issues in your
case.

My staff attorney and I plan to make a trip to see Mr. Sutton in the next few weeks. I will let you
know if he has anything helpful to say, although I don't anticipate that he will.

[ understand that you believe that I should pursue Mr. Baker further with the hope that he will
change his statement or can be "tricked" into changing his statement. I'm sorry that I cannot
agree to lie to a witness to try to induce them into changing sworn testimony. A recantation
obtained in that way would not be considered credible by a court. Although that technique is
used by law enforcement during investigations, the post-conviction standards in proving
innocence are different.

We have conducted a search for Deputy Sheriff Rome Martin, who you indicated warned you
that the murder was being "pinned" on you. I have also made several attempts to contact Mr.
Rex Gore, who is in private practice now, but he has not returned my calls. I will continue to try
to reach him. With regard to Mr. Raymond Savage, based on your trial transcript, he did not
testify at your trial. Finally, with regard to Mr. Taub, he testified that there were some positive
indications for the presence of blood found in the automobile. I did not find his testimony
particularly compelling and I am confident he would not have anything to add or even remember
the case now.

We have also drafted affidavits for the sheriff's department and clerk's office to sign regarding
the physical evidence in your case, but I do not plan to send those until after we attempt to talk to
Mr. Sutton. At that time, I will also determine whether we will attempt to obtain discovery of
police and prosecution files in your case, whether we will pursue the signed affidavits, or if it
might be time to refer your case to the Innocence Inquiry Commission so they can obtain full

NOTE: The North Carolina Center on Actual Innocence (including all its affiliated Innocence Projects® and individuals) reviews cases for the
sole purpose of investigating claims of actual innocence. The Center does not act as legal counsel to any person whose case is being investigated,
until and unless the Center, through its legal counsel or her designees, specifically agrees in writing to take on such representation. The North
Carolina Center on Actual Innocence is a separate entity from the North Carolina Innocence Inquiry Commission.



discovery of all police and prosecutorial files. The Commission can also confirm, through their
own search, that there is no additional physical evidence in your case.

Please let me know if you have any questions. I will be in touch to let you know how it goes
with Mr. Sutton.

Best,

Chris Mumma
Executive Director

NOTE: The North Carolina Center on Actual Innocence (including all its affiliated Innocence Projects® and individuals) reviews cases for the
sole purpose of investigating claims of actual innocence. The Center does not act as legal counsel to any person whose case is being investigated,
until and unless the Center, through its legal counsel or her designees, specifically agrees in writing to take on such representation. The North
Carolina Center on Actual Innocence is a separate entity from the North Carolina Innocence Inquiry Commission.
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DPS RECORDS
JOSEPH SLEDGE

The DPS Records for Joseph Sledge were reviewed by NCIIC Staff. The following areas were
noted and are described below: Education, IQ, Diagnosis, and Literacy/Functioning.

The following are abbreviated: Combined Records (CR) and Medical Records (MR).

EDUCATION:

CR 000043 — 12/28/2012: “Inmate Sledge claims to have a twelfth grade education.
There is no documentation of a GED or high school diploma.”

CR 000060 - 04/13/2000: “Inmate Sledge stated that he has a high school diploma from
1964.”

CR 000061 — 03/26/1999: “Joseph claims he completed high school in Georgia.”

CR 000260 — 09/15/1977: “Achievement at only a 6.2 grade level as compared with his
claimed high school education.”

CR 000356 — 10/09/1977: “Mr. Sledge reports that he completed high school before
going into the military...”

CR 000289 — 01/14/1978: “Says he completed H.S. in Savannah, GA.”

MR 000291 — 04/06/1979: “Admission test results indicate an inmate with average
intelligence, Beta 98, with a 6™ grade achievement level compared to a 12" grade claim.”
MR 000307 — 05/18/1977: “High school graduate — no prior training school record. Fair
student. Good relationship with all teachers.”

1Q:
e CR 000260 —09/15/1977: Beta 98 .
e CR 000357 — 10/09/1997: Beta IQ 98, “which is in the normal range of intelligence.”
e CR 000361 —06/20/1995: Bet 1Q 98
e MR 000291 — 04/06/1979: Beta IQ 98
DIAGNOSIS:

CR 000259 — 03/01/1978: “Record reveals that there has been some psychological
intervention.”

CR 000260 — 09/15/1977: “His personality profile had some 4 scales above normal.”
CR 000356 — 10/09/1997: “Characteristic of those contacts was the April 1979 interview
by Psychiatrist Dr. Mahorney who concluded that the diagnosis was most probably
characterological in nature.”

CR 000357 — 10/09/1997: “The MMPI-2 results are valid and indicate no psychometric
risk factors. The Violent Recidivism Worksheet identified 3 factors suggesting a low to



moderate probability of arrest... a Sexual Offenders Risk Factor Summary was
completed. This form suggests that there is some level of risk in dealing with this man.”
CR 000360 — 06/20/1995: “In 1978 he was diagnosed with mild anxiety. In 1979 as a
result of difficulty sleeping and his complaints of auditory and visual hallucinations, a
psychiatrist at Central Prison felt he was manipulating for legal gain. He was diagnosed
as character disordered.”

CR 000367 — 8/17/1977: “Joseph notes he was seen by psychiatrist (sic) when
incarcerated in Lorton Reformatory. He notes that in 1973 he was seen by a North
Carolina Prison Psychiatrist because ‘I wasn’t feeling too well.” He denies any other
mental treatment.”

MR 000290 — 04/12/1979: “While the patient presents a number of characteristics usually
associated with mental disorders he basically seems to be manipulating personnel here to
attempt to appear to have some sort of psychotic disorder apparently for the purpose of
use in a legal trial. Diagnosis here is characterological disturbance. I doubt any psychotic
process at this time.”

MR 000293 — 04/19/1982: “Joseph Sledge is a retarded black male seen by this
psychologist informally a number of times.”

MR 000294 — 05/16/1977: “Inmate Sledge denies mental health intervention with the
Department of Correction and no previous reports could be located. The Inmate admits
hospitalization for psychological evaluation following an auto accident in 1973.
According to his description of events he may have experienced hallucinations at that
time... Affect was appropriate and there is no present evidence of thought disorder.
Inmate Sledge currently does not manifest a need for either medication or psychiatric
treatment.”

MR 000304 — 05/24/1995: Adult Male Report Sheet indicates “27 T Possessed by evil
spirits, 33 T Strange or peculiar experiences, 179 T Worry over sex matters.”

MR 000307 — 05/18/1977: “Had no mental problems” in formative years.

LITERACY/FUNCTIONING:

CR 000259 — 03/01/1978: “Joseph talked very intelligently; his manner, though, seemed
to indicate that he was somewhat disturbed mentally.”

CR 000260 — 09/15/1977: “Achievement at only a 6.2 grade level... Joseph seems to be
somewhat confused at times, and fails to accpet (sic) the seriousness of his actions. He
babbles on and off about his religion...”

CR 000262 — 05/13/1977: “He appears prone toward an antisocial lifestyle, which may be
characterized by unreliability and disrespect for the consequences of his behavior.”

CR 000357 — 10/09/1997: “He was well oriented and his thoughts were clear and
relevant. There was no circumstantiality nor loose associations. His verbal skills were
somewhat better than average for the inmate population. He denied problems that would
be indicative of an affective illness or psychosis.”

CR 000361 — 06/20/1995: ... achievement scores on a 6'" grade level.”

CR 000365 — N/A: “Inmate appears to function at a normal level of intelligence.”



MR 000293 — 04/19/1982: “Some time was spent evaluating the inmate in his work site
and his adjustment to cell location. Indications are that he is functioning adequately.”
MR 000307 — 05/18/1977: “The inmate appears to function at a normal level of
intelligence.”
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NAME: SLEDGE JOSEPH NCDOC#: 20644-0S
CRITICAL ITEMS (Paraphrased From The Original):
27 T Possessed by evil spirits

33 T Strange or peculiar experiences
179 T Worry over sex matters

TEST DATE: 05-24-95
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Summary of Media no<mqmmm

PRE-TRIAL

Date

Source

Headline

9/6/76

Southeastern Times

Two Bladen Women Found Murdered
e Authorities looking for Sledge
e Community shocked, can’t imagine a motive to kill the Davises

9/7/76

The Fayetteville Observer

Bladen Woman, Daughter Found Murdered in Home

Says bodies discovered by Omega Hales (rather than Wanda)
Medical Examiner: no sign of molestation

e Living room bore signs of struggle, but money was left

e No murder weapon found

9/7/76

The Fayetteville Observer

Man Sought in Murders in Bladen
e LE looking for Sledge

9/8/76

The Fayetteville Observer

Escapee Search Continues
e Still looking for Sledge after his close encounter with police in Fayetteville
e Includes photo of Victims’ house with “Keep Out Sheriff” sign.

9/8/76

The Robesonian

Murder Suspect Eludes Police
e Police looking for Sledge

9/9/76

The Fayetteville Observer

Violence ends Two Quiet Lives
e Medical Examiner says there was a sexual assault on Aileen Davis, despite preliminary
examination indicating otherwise

9/9/76

The Bladen Journal

Escapee Sought in Killings
e Prison official s say bloodhounds traced Sledge’s scent towards Davis home
e Medical Examiner (Meinhardt) said no evidence of sexual molestation
e Sheriff Allen said nothing looked out of place in victims’ house

9/10/76

The Fayetteville Observer

Escapee Questioned in Slayings
e Sledge caught in Dillon, SC

9/11/76

The Fayetteville Observer

Sledge Charged in Armed Theft
o Sledge charged with hold up of man at a rest area off I-95 where he allegedly took 400 dollars
from Johnny Ray Stone
e Sledge held in Cumberland Co. Jail, but taken to Elizabethtown for a few hours




Summary of Media Coverage

e A pistol was confiscated form one of the victims’ family members headed toward the
courthouse

9/13/76 Southeastern Times Sledge Returned to Cumberland County
e Sledge arrested in Dillon, SC, but released on bond
e Authorities went out to recatch him after finding out he was wanted in NC
e Sledge apprehended and brought to Cumberland County Jail
9/14/76 The Fayetteville Observer | Stabbing Death Probe Continues
e Sledge questioned, but not charged in murders
e Sheriff won’t comment on results of fingerprint analyses
9/16/76 The Bladen Journal Inmates Lodge Complaints on Prison Conditions
e 11 escapes in June, July August; 3 so far in September
e No link between Sledge to killings
e Sparkman says unit is short on personnel
9/16/76 The Bladen Journal (photo of victims’ funeral procession)
9/16/76 The Bladen Journal (photo of Sledge in handcuffs)
9/16/76 The Bladen Journal Tighter Security Sought at White Lake Prison
¢ Sledge was present at 1:00 pm roll call, but not at 4:00
e Alleged link of Sledge to murders sparked call for better security 500 signature son petition)
e Sledge still not connected to murders
9/20/76 Southeastern Times Reward Sought In Murder Case
e Sheriff requested, expected to receive, reward offer form Governor’s office
9/20/76 Southeastern Times Tighter White Lake Security Petition Aim
e 500 people sign petition asking for better security at White Lake Prison
9/21/76 The Fayetteville Observer | Bladen Sheriff Offers Reward
9/22/76 Southeastern Times Reward Offered in Case
9/23/76 The Bladen Journal Reward Offered in Double Slayings
e Sheriff personally offered $1000 reward for information
e “Sexual assault was apparent”
e Sledge prime suspect, but no evidence
9/28/76 The Fayetteville Observer

Bladen Slayer Said Non-White




Summary of Media Coverage

9/28/76

The Fayetteville Observer

Sheriff Says Non-White Killed Two Women

9/29/76

Southeastern Times

Sheriff Issues Statement
e To quell speculation, sheriff says evidence found eliminates any Caucasian person as a suspect

9/30/76

The Bladen Journal

Bladen’s Real Friend and Public Forum (letters to the editor)
e 2 letters praising sheriff Allen for offering his own money as a reward; one of the letters is form
victims’ family

9/30/76

The Bladen Journal

County Asks for Tighter Prison Security and Sheriff Says Murderer Not White
e County Commissioners suggest residents were concerned about prison security even prior to
the Davis murders
e Sheriff Allen says killer could not be white Based on physical evidence form scene of crime;
wants to dispel rumors _
e Sledge in Cumberland County Jail on charges of auto larceny and (armed?) robbery

10/7/76

The Fayetteville Observer

Reward Posted in Deaths

10/7/76

The Bladen Journal

Unsigned Letter Claims Knowledge of Murder
e Anonymous letter claims to know identity of killer
e \Writer afraid of being murdered if he identifies killer, wants protection
e Sheriff's dept. not sure if it is a hoax, but promises to protect writer and asks him to call

10/11/76

Southeastern Times

Reward Raised to $3500 for Murders

10/14/76

The Bladen Journal

Reward Increased
e Gov. Holshouser offers reward of $2500
e Aileen was sexually assaulted according to autopsy
e Murderer not white
e Mystery letter writer has not contacted Sheriff

10/18/76

Southeastern Times

Prison Officials Coming to Board Meeting Tuesday
e Prison official to meet with county Board of Commissioners
e Petition for better security has 1200 signatures

10/21/76

The Bladen Journal

Lack of Funds Blamed for Escapes
e Director of prison system attended meeting of Bladen County Commissioners; says escapes at
White Lake no greater than other units
e Approval of hiring new dispatchers




Summary of Media Coverage

e Lonnie Davis asks for community notification when an inmate is loose

10/21/76 | The Bladen Journal Reward Still Up
10/27/76 | Southeastern Times Prisoner Escapes is Soon Captured
e Another escape form White Lake
10/28/76 | The Bladen Journal Escapee Caught
e White male inmate caught hours after escaping
11/8/76 Times-News of Murder Victims Exhumed
Hendersonville e “The women'’s prints were not obtained prior to burial.”
11/10/76 | Southeastern Times Murder victims’ Bodies Exhumed
UNK UNK More Tests Made in 2 Slayings
e Victims’ bodies exhumed to determine exact cause of death and to take proper finger and palm
prints of the victims.
11/11/76 | The Fayetteville Observer | Autopsy Uncovers New Data
e Victims’ bodies exhumed to get finger and palm prints
11/11/76 | The Fayetteville Observer | Reasons Offered for Exhumations
e Inked impressions were made during first autopsy, but they were not “identificable” and new
prints were needed for comparison with latents form crime scene
11/11/76 | The Bladen Journal Davis Bodies Exhumed Tuesday
e Bodies exhumed and taken to Chapel Hill for further tests; specific reason not stated
e States that both women were molested
11/11/76 | The Robesonian Bodies of 2 Bladen Women Exhumed for More Study
e Need for victims’ finger and palm prints
11/17/76 | Southeastern Times Prisoner Escapes Monday
e Melvin Watts, white male, escaped White Lake (not recaptured)
11/22/76 | The Bladen Journal Escape Reported
e Black male inmates serving armed robbery sentence escapes White Lake
11/24/76 | Southeastern Times Reward Hiked
12/16/76 | The Bladen Journal Davis Reward to Expire

e $2000 of $4500 reward to be withdrawn 12/22/76
e Aileen was sexually assaulted




Summary of Media Coverage

e Sledge chased in direction of Davis home after his escape

12/19/76 | Southeastern Times Three Prisoners Escape White Lake Unit
e Not recaptured
12/20/76 | Southeastern Times $2000 Reward to be Rescinded Wednesday
1/2/77 The Robesonian Death, Politics, Progress Top Bladen News
e “Noimportant evidence has turned up in the case and the killer has not been brought to trial”
1/3/77 The Bladen Journal Year Ends with Double Slayings Still Unsolved
1/3/77 Southeastern Times Sledge Transferred to Minimum Security Unit
e Still a suspect, but not enough evidence to arrest/indict
e SBI agent: “nothing of any consequence has developed in this case in the last few weeks.”
1/10/77 Southeastern Times Inmate Escapes
e Black male escapes from White Lake; not recaptured
2/23/77 Southeastern Times Reps Ask for Quick Action on Security
4/4/77 The Bladen Journal Sledge Waives Hearing
e Sledge waives probable cause hearing for larceny and escape
e Sheriff says Sledge is suspect despite no evidence
4/26/77 The Fayetteville Observer | Escapee Guilty of Theft
e Sledge pleaded guilty to stealing a car in Cumberland County; still faces charge of armed robbery
8/11/77 The Fayetteville Observer | Escapee Sentenced
e Four years for auto theft
8/27/77 The Fayetteville Observer | Unit to Probe Bladen Deaths
e SBI homicide squad led by Max Bryan to investigate Davis murders
8/29/77 The Bladen Journal Homicide Squad Reopens Davis Case
e SBIto reopen Davis case; Max Bryan to lead investigation (?)
e Sheriff Allen says his dept. exhausted all leads
e Sledge back in prison after trial for auto larceny and escape
8/29/77 Southeastern Times Special SBI Team Will Aid Locals _
e AG asked for SBI homicide squad to get involved in investigation
9/5/77 Southeastern Times Many Bladen Crimes Unsolved

e Six Bladen County murders in 1976 and no arrests by Bladen officials




Summary of Media Coverage

9/12/77 Southeastern Times Sheriff Allen Says State Report Wrong
e Says there were only 4 murders in 1976; 2 cleared by arrests, and the other two are the Davises
11/7/77 The Fayetteville Times Sheriff and SBI Still Seeking Clues in Davis Murders
e Says Omega found bodies
e Sledge prime suspect, but investigators are looking at all leads
1/23/78 The Bladen Journal Deaths Plague County
e There were 8 mysterious deaths in Bladen County; 4 since the Davis investigation was reopened
e 400 dollars and two rifles were in the room with Davis victims, undisturbed
e The guards chasing Sledge gave up at 9:30 pm and opted to resume in the morning
e Sledge still prime suspect, despite lack of evidence
1/30/78 Southeastern Times Allen Will Not Seek New Sheriff Term
2/1/78 Southeastern Times Candidates Lining Up for Bladen’s Political Races
2/18/78 The Fayetteville Times SBI Expects Arrest Soon in Bladen Murders
e New evidence makes arrest possible within a few weeks
2/20/78 The Bladen Journal Arrest Pending in Davis Case Say SBI Agents
e Max Bryan, SBI, says arrest coming within a few weeks
e Poole says he and Little interviewed over 250 people, and sometimes even if they know who
committed a crime, they can’t prove it
2/22/78 The Fayetteville Observer | Grand Jury in Bladen to Meet on Slayings
e Sledge moved from Central Prison to Bladen County Jail; Judge signed order to convene grand
jury; SBI “confident we have our man.”
2/22/78 Southeastern Times Sledge Returned to Bladen County
e Upcoming Grand Jury hearing
2/23/78 The Bladen Journal (photo of Sledge and Little)
2/24/78 The Fayetteville Observer | Prisoner Indicted in Bladen Slayings
e Sledge indicted for two counts of first degree murder; law enforcement won’t comment on
what new evidence led to indictment
2/24/78 The Fayetteville Times Man Indicted in 76 Bladen Slayings
2/27/78 The Bladen Journal Sledge Charged with Davis Murders

e Notes that Aileen had been sexually assaulted




Summary of Media Coverage

Sledge mugshot from 9-13-76 shows he had no hair or facial hair

2/27/78 Southeastern Times Sledge Indicted in Davis Murders
3/21/78 The Fayetteville Observer | Judge Moves Sledge Trial
3/21/78 The Fayetteville Observer | Sledge Granted Venue Change
3/23/78 The Bladen Journal Sledge Trial Moved
e Report on the change of venue; also notes sexual assault of Aileen
3/22/78 Southeastern Times Venue Change for Sledge

Too much prejudicial pre-trial publicity




Summary of Media Coverage

FIRST TRIAL

Date

Source

Headline

5/1/78

Southeastern Times

Sledge Trial Opening Set for Today

5/2/78

The Bladen Journal

Trial Begins in Columbus County
e Little testifies that Sledge told him a white man killed the Davis Women

5/2/78

The Fayetteville Observer

Trial Opens in Bladen Slayings
e Little says Sledge revealed information about the killings before police mentioned anything
e Omega said she found the bodies?

5/2/78

The Fayetteville Times

Testimony Begins in Trial of Sledge for Bladen Deaths
e Little testifies about Sledge saying a black man wouldn’t cut victims up
e Sledge described as having shaved head and bearded chin, muscular
e SBI wouldn’t reveal what new evidence led to indictment that wasn’t found during initial
investigation

5/3/78

The Fayetteville Observer

Witness — Slain Victims She Devils
o References Baker’s testimony (hard to read); Baker says Sledge confessed to him and
sprinkled black pepper

5/3/78

The Fayetteville Times

Witnesses say Sledge Admitted Killing Two
o Contains quotes from Baker’s testimony; Baker said Sledge confessed, thought house was
empty, hit and stabbed the victims, called them she-devils and expected fire instead of
blood, sprinkled pepper so spirits could not follow him

5/3/78

Southeastern Times

Two Fellow Inmates Testify in Trial
o References Baker’s testimony; consistent with 2/15/78 interview with law enforcement

5/4/78

The Bladen Journal

Storms, J. Kelly in Sheriff Runoff

5/4/78

The Fayetteville Observer

Sledge Awaits Verdict in Trial in Whiteville
e DA Greer admits all evidence against Sledge is circumstantial
e Defense Attorney Moore questions why none of the 97 sets of finger prints nor the plaster
casts of shoe prints were presented at trial

5/4/78

The Fayetteville Times

Fate of Sledge in Jury’s Hands
e Sutton testifies that Sledge admitted to killings on 9/17/76 (*but elsewhere I've seen that
Sutton wasn’t recaptured until 9/21/76)




Summary of Media Coverage

e Moore did not put on a defense

5/5/78 The Fayetteville Observer | Sledge Mistrial Ruled
e Deadlock, 11-1 in favor of conviction
e “Bladen County Detective Phillip Little testified that the pepper can was the only object found
on the kitchen floor of the Davis house after the murder. Little said he found no fingerprints on
it so he returned the can to its original position on the floor. Little testified the pepper can
remained on the floor from Sept. 6, 1976, until Feb. 17, 1978, when it was retrieved as ‘new
evidence.”
5/5/78 The Fayetteville Times Mistrial Ruled in Sledge Case
5/8/78 The Bladen Journal Mistrial Declared for Sledge
e Sutton and Baker testified against Sledge; when mistrial was declared, he began mumbling and
smiling
5/8/78 Southeastern Times Mistrial Ordered in Sledge Case
e Jury originally reported deadlock of 10-2, but Judge sent them back for more deliberations
e After more than 8 hours of deliberations, jury hung at 11-1
5/29/78 Times-News Black Candidate Wins in Wake Sheriff Race

e Irrelevant to trial; mentions Earl Storms winning Bladen Sheriff race




Summary of Media Coverage

SECOND TRIAL
Date Source Headline
8/10/78 The Bladen Journal Sledge Trial Set August 24
e DA doesn’t believe he could seek death penalty
e “State Attorney General Rufus Edmisten re-opened the case Aug. 26, 1977, and turned it
over to the SBI with Henry Poole of the Homicide Squad and Bladen County Detective Phillip
Little in charge.”
8/28/78 The Bladen Journal Sledge Trial Started at Whiteville Monday
e References Sledge’s testimony (he didn’t testify in first trial) about stealing a car and clothes and
heading to Fayetteville
8/29/78 The Fayetteville Observer | Sledge Trial Opens in Whiteville
e DA Lee Greer said the prosecution will call a number of out-of-state witnesses and present new
evidence that wasn't in first trial
8/30/78 The Fayetteville Times Inmate — Sledge Admitted Killings
e Sutton on Sledge: “We were eating breakfast and he said (the victims) would never eat
breakfast again.”
8/30/78 The Fayetteville Times Jury Hears report of Statement by Sledge
e Jury of ten white people and two black people
e “As photographs of the bloodsoaked murder scene were passed to the jury, Sledge, who spent
most of his time slumped down in a chair, broke into a smile that turned down at the corners of
his mouth. At other times, he closed his eyes and seemed to doze.”
8/30/78 Wilmington Morning Star | Inmate Says Sledge Talked of Killings
e First day of testimony was a near repeat of testimony given during the first trial. No new
evidence was presented and no new witnesses were called.
e Donald Sutton told the jury that Sledge confessed to him while the two were having a
conversation at the Fayetteville County Jail a few days after the murder.
8/31/78 The Fayetteville Times Sledge Denies Killing Two Bladen County Women
e Sledge testifies that he didn’t go near the victims’ house and that he found out about the
murders from a newspaper in Fayetteville
8/31/78 The Fayetteville Observer | Sledge Denies Slayings
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Summary of Media Coverage

e Sledges testifies that after escaping he was trying to find “a man” who would give him money
and legal advice and help him turn himself in after he found out he was wanted in the murders

e He wouldn’t say who the man was, only that he was “on another part of the earth”

e Article focuses a lot on Baker’s testimony

8/31/78

The Bladen Journal

Inmate Says Sledge Admitted Slayings
e New jury is all white
e Sutton says Sledge confessed to him in Cumberland Co. Jail “a few days after the murders were
discovered” (Again, when was Sutton recaptured?)

9/1/78

The Fayetteville Observer

Sledge Gets Sentences in Two Bladen Deaths
e Jury was made up of 10 white people and two black people (other article says all white?)
e Sledge maintains innocence
e Defense called two other inmates from same cell block in Cumberland County Jail who say
Sledge never confessed to Sutton and that they were with him

9/1/78

The Fayetteville Times

Sledge Convicted in Bladen Slayings

9/4/78

The Bladen Journal

Sledge Gets Two Life Sentences
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"Murder Suspect; |
_Eludes Police |

FAYETTEVILLE — An
escapee from the Bladen
County Prison Camp sought in
connection for the murder of
two women near Elizabethtown
Monday eluded police here
Tuesday in a high-speed chase.

The Fayetteville man, 32-year
old Joeseph Stedge Jr., was seen
on Pamalee Drive in a car said
to be stelen from Elizabethtown
after the double murder
Monday.

Stabbed and beaten to death
in their<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>